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          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: This is the

          3  Public Safety Committee and the Education Committee,

          4  we will be beginning.  I have spoken to the Chair of

          5  the Education Committee, who will be here shortly,

          6  but, realizes the important work the men who are

          7  about to testify have to do, and has given us the

          8  okay to get started.

          9                 Today we have an issue which is of

         10  great concern, to me individually, both as a

         11  legislator, and as a parent of two daughters who

         12  attend public schools in New York City, that is

         13  School Security.  At a joint hearing of these

         14  Committees in February, we heard testimony from NYPD

         15  and the Department of Education, that they would

         16  install surveillance cameras in 11 schools, with the

         17  history of safety issues.

         18                 The reason for the installation of

         19  these cameras according to the Departments, is to

         20  enhance security, prevent crime before it takes

         21  place, and catch those individuals who engage in

         22  illegal acts.  Now these are sound reasons, and I

         23  believe, as do many of us up here, that all of our

         24  children should have the benefit of such protection.

         25
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          2                 In November of 2000 for example, when

          3  PS 89 in Elmhurst Queens four children were sexually

          4  assaulted after a man entered the building through

          5  an unguarded door.  Had a camera been present at

          6  that door, perhaps these horrible attacks could have

          7  been prevented.

          8                 Prompted by this incident, myself as

          9  well as several others, sponsored Intro. 490, which

         10  mandates that the Department of Education in

         11  conjunction with the NYPD, install surveillance

         12  cameras at the entrance and exit, of each New York

         13  City Public School.  I look forward to hearing

         14  testimony on this bill, and we are all open to ways

         15  to which this bill can be improved and perhaps

         16  expanded.  And, hopefully we will hear some ways

         17  about how this bill can be paid for.  But, if you

         18  have any suggestions, we will take those also.

         19                 Now we will hear from the Department

         20  of Education and NYPD first, then we will hear from

         21  the school unions, I believe that Randi Weingarten

         22  is coming down to testify.  I'd like to briefly

         23  introduce some of the Members who are here already,

         24  with more coming in.

         25                 My near right is the Chairman of the
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          2  Contracts Committee, Robert Jackson, and on my far

          3  right is our Minority Leader Jim Oddo, who has been

          4  a pioneer in our efforts here in the City to install

          5  video cameras, in fact he has been working

          6  tirelessly to get this done in his own district, and

          7  I would ask him now, because he was one of the

          8  forces behind this bill to make some brief remarks.

          9                 MR. ODDO:  Thank you Mr. Chairman,

         10  and let me just commend you for the legislation and

         11  for your efforts to do Citywide what I am trying to

         12  do in my own district on Staten Island.  We

         13  allocated $450,000 in Fiscal Year 02, to provide

         14  cameras for three schools on Staten Island, and

         15  school construction authority site visits in June

         16  and designs will be done in October of 2003, and

         17  then bids will go out.  And, the reason why I did it

         18  frankly is because I was approached by Principals of

         19  my schools, who feel they need additional eyes and

         20  ears.  And I think no one believes that cameras are

         21  a panacea, but I think they add another layer of

         22  protection.

         23                 And, we have schools, despite the

         24  best efforts of Mr. Tucker, who has been absolutely

         25  wonderful in working with in my district, but we
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          2  have schools that have one School Safety Officer,

          3  and we have school populations in the hundreds.  And

          4  we are looking for anyway to help make sure that our

          5  kids are safe in our schools. So, my projects are

          6  moving along.  I think that it is a good thing, and

          7  I think it would be great if we could do this

          8  Citywide in all our schools.  And, I appreciate your

          9  efforts today, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         11  Council Member.  Now I would like to introduce

         12  Assistant Chief Gerald Nelson, who is Head of School

         13  Security at the NYPD, and the Head of School

         14  Security at the Department of Education, Ben Tucker.

         15    Gentlemen, welcome and we would first like to, on

         16  behalf of both Committees, like to commend you both

         17  for the work you have done to keep our children

         18  safe.

         19                 We realize that crime is down in the

         20  schools and that is due to the efforts of you and

         21  the people who work for you, and well as Ray Kelly

         22  and the Police Commissioner, and the Mayor.

         23                 So, we are aware of the fine work you

         24  are doing, we commend you, and we look forward to

         25  your testimony today.
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  Good morning, Chairman

          3  Vallone, thank you for your kind remarks.  Members

          4  of the Education and Public Safety Committees, good

          5  morning to you as well.  My name is Ben Tucker, and

          6  I am the Chief Executive for the Office of School

          7  Safety and Planning within the Department of

          8  Education.

          9                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         10  appear before you today to update you on the

         11  progress of our work with respect to the placement

         12  of video surveillance cameras in ten priority high

         13  school buildings, and to offer comment on Intro.

         14  490, the proposed law that would require the

         15  installation of, and installation and operation of

         16  video security cameras in all New York City Public

         17  Schools.

         18                 When I appeared before you, before

         19  this body seven months ago, I discussed the scope of

         20  work, of the new office, of School Safety and

         21  Planning within the new school government structure,

         22  under Mayor Bloomberg and Chancellor Klein.  At that

         23  time I outlined our strategy to promote and sustain

         24  a climate of safety in all New York City Public

         25  Schools under Our Children First Initiative.

                                                            9

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 Since then, as part of continued

          3  efforts to further underscore the Departments

          4  commitment to our children, the Chancellor

          5  established the Office of Youth Development in

          6  School Community Services.  The Office of School

          7  Safety and Planning is one of the five units within

          8  the new Youth Development Office, working together

          9  to create healthy, safe, and enriched environment in

         10  our schools, an environment that supports teaching

         11  and learning.            In light of the focus, of

         12  this hearing, and in response to the Chair's

         13  specific request for information regarding our

         14  progress with video camera installations in ten of

         15  our high school buildings, I will begin by

         16  discussing the status of this initiative.  I will

         17  then update you on the progress of the work of our

         18  office, generally, followed by my comments on the

         19  proposed law.

         20                 The following ten high schools have

         21  been beneficiaries of our efforts to augment the

         22  respective Safety and Security Programs for our

         23  school buildings.  Graphic Communication Arts,

         24  Morris Campus, Harry S. Truman, Erasmus Campus,

         25  South Shore, and August Martin all received repairs
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          2  or upgrades and/or upgrades to their existing closed

          3  circuit television systems.  Prospect Heights and

          4  Samuel J. Tilden received new CCTV installations,

          5  and finally, consistent with our efforts to use

          6  state of the art technology, The John F. Kennedy

          7  Campus and The Taft Educational Campus each received

          8  new network based surveillance systems that utilize

          9  existing computer connections.

         10                 These two sites demonstrate a

         11  technology that enables on going monitoring by

         12  Safety Officials at various locations.  The

         13  technology is promising, because of the potential to

         14  leverage the Department's recent investment in

         15  computer connections that has greatly -- because of

         16  the recent investment in computer connection that

         17  has greatly expanded internet access in our schools.

         18                 The location of the cameras in each

         19  school varies depending on its specific need in the

         20  respective buildings.  Based on an assessment for

         21  individual schools, the locations include entrances,

         22  exits, hallways, cafeterias, and outside areas.  It

         23  is important to note, that due to our desire to have

         24  cameras operating in each of these schools, we made

         25  repairs in six schools where systems were in place,
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          2  but not operating.  In four of the schools we

          3  installed systems where they did not exist.  The

          4  total cost for this phase of the work in these ten

          5  schools as been roughly $700,000.

          6                 To provide the ten schools with

          7  state- of- the- art systems would cost significantly

          8  more than we have invested to date.  We are

          9  considering making further improvements to these

         10  systems during the current school year.  With

         11  respect to the maintenance of these systems, the

         12  industry standard is typically ten percent of the

         13  initial capital investment.

         14                 With the installation of 30 new

         15  systems over the past 12 months, the Department now

         16  has 155 school buildings with video surveillance

         17  capacity ranging from one camera to multiple camera

         18  configurations.  One third of these systems have

         19  digital video recorders with remote access.

         20                 What we have discovered in reviewing

         21  the use of cameras in our schools is that

         22  historically, there has been no uniform standard

         23  guiding those who have decided to install them.

         24  Those decisions have heretofore been made by

         25  principals and other school staff, as well as staff
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          2  in District Offices, the Divisions of School

          3  Facilities Security Unit, or the School Construction

          4  Authority.

          5                 The funding sources have been

          6  diverse.  Some projects have been accomplished

          7  through the Department's Capital Plan.  Funding for

          8  other projects has been identified by districts or

          9  schools.  Some projects have been generously

         10  supported by the City Council, other elected

         11  officials, or private donors.

         12                 Consequently, the provisions for the

         13  use and maintenance of the systems has not been

         14  consistent, the technical specifications have not

         15  always been satisfactory, and a number of systems

         16  have fallen into disrepair.  The Office of School

         17  Safety and Planning is in the process of developing

         18  a system- wide standards and procedures for the

         19  planning procurement, installation, and maintenance

         20  of security technology through out our schools.

         21                 You have asked what effect if any,

         22  the installation of the cameras has had on safety in

         23  the respective schools.  We are aware of cases where

         24  video cameras have been effective in addressing

         25  school- specific problems, such as the pulling of
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          2  fire alarms, vandalism and theft.  We plan to more

          3  systematically examine the effectiveness of the

          4  cameras and their affect on school climate.

          5                 However, it will be difficult to

          6  evaluate their impact on school safety in isolation

          7  because of the simultaneous implementation of many

          8  other initiatives intended to improve school

          9  climate.

         10                 Moreover, it is important to note

         11  that while the use of video surveillance may deter

         12  crime, it can only work as adjunct to a

         13  comprehensive safety and security program.  Indeed

         14  working in partnership with the office of the

         15  criminal justice coordinator, the Vera Institute of

         16  Justice, and the Police Department, we have

         17  developed such a comprehensive strategy.

         18                 As earlier noted, the Office of

         19  School Safety and Planning has made progress in

         20  other areas of its strategic plan as well.  We

         21  continue to work closely with Chief Gerald Nelson

         22  and the New York Police Department School Safety

         23  Division.  The partnership with the School Safety

         24  Division is crucial to our efforts.

         25                 As part of the Department's overall
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          2  restructuring, we have hired ten Regional School

          3  Safety Administrators.  They are an experienced

          4  group of practitioners who bring a wealth of first

          5  hand experience in the area of school safety and

          6  security matters. They provide support to local

          7  instructional Superintendents and Principals as an

          8  integral part of the Youth Development Student

          9  Placement, and Youth Development Family Support

         10  Services Team.

         11                 Our New Beginnings Program was

         12  launched last spring in order to expand classroom

         13  removal options for disruptive students in selective

         14  high schools.  We opened ten additional centers

         15  earlier this month and we now have a total of 16

         16  centers, serving 26 schools, operating in every

         17  borough of the City.

         18                 You may recall that these centers are

         19  part of a pilot program created by the Department in

         20  Partnership with the After School Corporation and

         21  several community- based organizations, such as the

         22  Children's Aid Society, The South Bronx Overall

         23  Development Corporation, The New York City Mission

         24  Society, and The YMCA of Greater New York, in

         25  addition to others.
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          2                 The Community- based Organization

          3  staff have worked with the Department's Teachers to

          4  provide students with project based learning and

          5  credit bearing instruction in literacy and numeracy.

          6  The Centers' Place an emphasis on providing support

          7  services needed to effect positive change in student

          8  behavior and attitude, as well as academic

          9  performance.

         10                 Following the initial program phase

         11  last spring, the staff completed an assessment

         12  survey and the feedback was generally positive.

         13  Teachers and community- based staff were eager to

         14  return and work with our students. There was a

         15  strong consensus among staff that this initiative

         16  positively impacted the behavior and the achievement

         17  of our students.  In addition, the Principal of one

         18  of the participating schools, who visited the

         19  program affiliated with his school, noticed a marked

         20  improvement in the demeanor of his students.

         21  Moreover, he noted an improvement in the climate of

         22  his school.  All of this tends to confirm that we

         23  are on the right track.

         24                 It is also worth noting that the

         25  Department has expanded the capacity of the second
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          2  opportunity schools, so that our system can

          3  accommodate youngsters who have been suspended for a

          4  period of one year.

          5                 We have revised our Citywide

          6  standards of disciplinary and intervention measures,

          7  commonly referred to as the Student Discipline Code.

          8    We hosted two public hearings and in response to

          9  the public comment received, we have revised and

         10  finalized the new code.  Within the next few weeks,

         11  schools will begin receiving copies of the code

         12  along with the Student Bill of Rights and

         13  Responsibilities and Behavioral Contracts for every

         14  student.

         15                 As part of a new approach, lesson

         16  plans associated with the Discipline Code have been

         17  prepared for high school, middle school and

         18  elementary school.  Teachers will use them, the

         19  lesson plans, to engage students in discussion to

         20  help students understand the code and what is

         21  expected of them.  The code and the other documents

         22  will be available in seven languages.

         23                 With respect to incident reporting,

         24  our On- line Occurrence Reporting System is now

         25  fully employed and all schools are now required
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          2  report incidents electronically.  This will improve

          3  both the efficiency and effectiveness of the

          4  reporting process.  In addition, we are well on our

          5  way to developing a School Safety Information

          6  Management System, SSIMS.

          7                 This system is intended to assist

          8  principals, school safety personnel, and other

          9  stakeholders by offering snapshots of leading

         10  indicators associated with school climate and

         11  safety.  The vision here is to promote analysis and

         12  reporting of useful problem solving and policy

         13  decision- making information with a view toward

         14  improving school safety.

         15                 To further enhance our support to

         16  principals, parents, and students we have

         17  reestablished our Gang Intelligence Unit and our

         18  Gang Awareness Prevention and Intervention Program.

         19  The goal of this unit is to conduct training,

         20  collect, analyze and disseminate intelligence

         21  information to identify gang operations and criminal

         22  activities.

         23                 Regarding the proposed law, I would

         24  emphasize that multiple factors influence the

         25  climate, culture, and safety in schools.  As noted
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          2  in the research report "The Appropriate and

          3  Effective Use of Security Technologies in U.S.

          4  Schools", published by the U.S. Department of

          5  Justice, National Institute of Justice, School

          6  Security is a "Product of Funding, facilities,

          7  building age, building layout, administrators,

          8  teachers, parents, kids, personalities, campus

          9  order, school personnel, procedures, the

         10  neighborhood policies, the school board, local law

         11  enforcement, fire codes, local government, politics,

         12  and reputations".  Thus no two schools are alike and

         13  each case requires a targeted safety strategy.

         14                 There is no question that every

         15  person attending a public school should be able to

         16  do so" free from intimidation and physical harm".

         17  Video surveillance however, is but one tool in a

         18  comprehensive plan.

         19                 The Department has practical and

         20  legal reservations with respect to Section B of the

         21  proposed legislation, which would solely authorize

         22  the Police Department to promulgate rules and

         23  regulations regarding the accessing of recorded

         24  images.  This runs counter to the spirit and

         25  practice of the memorandum of understanding under
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          2  which the two agencies have operated over the past

          3  four years.

          4                 Finally, while the proposed law is

          5  well intentioned, it would appear based on the

          6  reasons outlined above, that the installation of

          7  video surveillance in our schools should be

          8  considered as part of a comprehensive approach to

          9  school safety.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  address you on these important matters.  I look

         12  forward to answering any questions you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.  We

         14  will hold questions until after Chief Nelson is

         15  done.  But, before you begin I would just like to

         16  introduce some Council Members who have joined us.

         17                 On my far left we have Council Member

         18  Eric Dilan, Council Member John Liu, Chair of the

         19  Transportation Committee, Council Member Al Vann and

         20  most importantly today we have been joined by

         21  Chairwoman of the Education Committee Eva Moskowitz,

         22  who I am sure would like to say a few words.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

         24  much.  I apologize for being late.  I was at an

         25  opening of a new Science School on the Westside of
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          2  Manhattan.  An exciting event.

          3                 Obviously, members of the Education

          4  Committee and Members of the New York City Council

          5  are incredibly concerned with school safety and in

          6  particular the recent state of events, shootings, at

          7  a number of schools and security cameras are used in

          8  many buildings.

          9                 Many commercial buildings have

         10  security cameras in them, and my colleague and Chair

         11  of the Public Safety Committee has a proposal to ask

         12  shouldn't schools have these as well in a more

         13  comprehensive way.  So, I appreciate your testimony

         14  and I don't know if we are going to go right to

         15  questions or --. Okay, great. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Chief Nelson?

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Good morning

         18  Chair Vallone, Chairwoman Moskowitz, Members of the

         19  Public Safety and Education Committee, Members of

         20  the Council.  On behalf of the Police Commissioner,

         21  Raymond W. Kelly and Chief of Department Joseph J.

         22  Esposito, I would like to thank you for this

         23  opportunity to speak to you about school safety

         24  issues and Introduction No. 490.

         25                 I am Assistant Chief Gerald Nelson,
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          2  the Commanding Officer of the New York City Police

          3  Department's School Safety Division.  I am also the

          4  proud graduate of the New York City Public Education

          5  System, having attended from elementary through high

          6  school. This is the education system that provided

          7  me with the foundation to obtain a Bachelor's degree

          8  from CUNY College and a Master's degree in Public

          9  Administration from City- based Marist College

         10  campus.

         11                 Before discussing the introd uction

         12  before you for consideration today, I would like to

         13  take t his opportunity to update you on recent

         14  developments in the School Safety Division

         15                 As you are aware, the School Safety

         16  Division was formed in 1998 with the goal of

         17  enhancing t he hiring, training, supervision and

         18  discipline of School Safety Agents; but moreover, to

         19  improve the safety of the students and educators of

         20  the New York City Public School System.  In that

         21  vein, the NYPD continues to have a positive working

         22  relationship with the Department of Education and

         23  their Office of School Safety and Planning.       Furthermore

         24  , the NYPD has continued to make strides improving

         25  School Safety, personnel, programs and technology.
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          2                 At the time of the transfer of

          3  responsibility for school safety to the NYPD in

          4  1998, the former Board of Education employed

          5  slightly over 3,000 School Safety Agents.  As of the

          6  end of last week, the NYPD has expanded the head

          7  count of the School Safety Division to approximately

          8  4,000 School Safety Agents with an additional 240

          9  agents in training in the Police Academy.  These 240

         10  Agents are expected to graduate in December of this

         11  year.

         12                 In addition to a number of Agents,

         13  our working relationship with the Department of

         14  Education is expected to improve with their hiring

         15  of the ten Regional Safety Administrators.  Once in

         16  place, these Safety Administrators will serve as

         17  liaisons with the NYPD School Safety Division to

         18  regularly share information at the regional level

         19  regarding School Safety issues.

         20                 Personnel are but one part of the

         21  equation to help students and educators.  Programs

         22  we develop and participate in are always created

         23  with the goal of enhancing the educational

         24  environment.  We have continued to operate the

         25  highly successful TRACK, Truancy Reduction Alliance
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          2  to Contact Kids Program.  The purpose of TRACK is to

          3  combat truancy in order to reduce daytime crime and

          4  youth victimization.

          5                 During the 2001- 2002 school year

          6  over 14,900 truants were processed at TRACK Centers.

          7    The volume increased by nine percent during the

          8  2002- 2003 school year when over 16,200 truants were

          9  handled.

         10                 In order to reach more students and

         11  make our School Safety Agents more visible, we have

         12  begun to train and equip agents for bicycle patrol.

         13  Bike patrol is a successful mode of patrol for

         14  Police Officers that has had the added benefit of

         15  making those officers more approachable.  We believe

         16  that in addition to covering larger areas bike

         17  patrol will enable our agents to travel more easily

         18  on larger campuses and within cluster sites.  Thus

         19  far, Citywide, 47 agents have been trained to

         20  perform bike patrol.

         21                 I would like to make a slight

         22  correction in the next part of my testimony for

         23  those who are reading along.  Under the No Child

         24  Left Behind Act, the New York State Education

         25  Department identified two schools which they
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          2  designated "persistently dangerous" and, as a

          3  preventative measure, no more than 13 schools could

          4  be placed on a "watch list".  These 15 schools were

          5  identified based on a ratio of weapons incidents to

          6  enrollment for two consecutive years.

          7                 These schools will be given special

          8  attention during the 2003- 2004 school year, with

          9  the objective of deterring weapons offenses and

         10  violence in and around those schools.  To that end,

         11  School Safety Division Mobile Task Forces are

         12  assigned to those locations each school morning.

         13                 The School Safety Agents in those

         14  locations conduct school vertical patrol throughout

         15  the day.  As we have done in the past, Patrol

         16  Borough Task Forces Participate in periodic

         17  mobilizations at each location.  Members of the

         18  School Safety Division Community Outreach Unit will

         19  conduct Anti- violence Information Workshops at

         20  these schools.

         21                 Additionally, Special Services Unit

         22  Agents conduct random hallway sweeps and vertical

         23  patrols.  Lastly, the participation of the personnel

         24  in the precinct concerned, such as Community Affairs

         25  Officers and Youth Officers, is coordinating this
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          2  effort.

          3                 The more substantial development in

          4  the School Safety Division has been the creation of

          5  the Counter- Terrorism Unit.  Established in March

          6  of 2003,  the purpose of the unit is to facilitate

          7  training and equipping personnel of the Division and

          8  to respond to threats involving schools.  The unit

          9  is headed by a uniformed Police Captain who is aided

         10  by an Associate School Security Manager.

         11                 The Captain serves as a liaison with

         12  the Counter Terrorism Bureau of the Police

         13  Department as well as the Office of Emergency

         14  Management.  To facilitate internal efficiency the

         15  Safety Plans Unit now reports to the Counter-

         16  Terrorism Unit.  Knowledge of school safety plans is

         17  continually re- emphasized to all our agents through

         18  training as is the importance of knowing evacuation

         19  routes and sites for the schools they patrol.

         20                 To more professionally equip our

         21  staff, the Police Department, through the Counter

         22  Terrorism Bureau, has issued Personal Protective

         23  Equipment kits to School Safety Task Force

         24  personnel.  Additionally, the duty uniform for all

         25  agents has been modified for greater comfort and
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          2  serviceability.

          3            While we continue to develop new and

          4  innovative programs to protect our schools, the

          5  Police Department also seeks to incorporate new

          6  technology into our School Safety portfolio.  We

          7  already operate 66 facilities with full- time

          8  magnetometers and x ray scanning and an additional

          9  11 randomly scheduled sites for a total of 77

         10  locations.  With over 250,000 students scanned

         11  within a 90 minute time frame each school day, the

         12  traffic and usage of our machines compete with those

         13  machines at the three airports that service New York

         14  City.

         15                 To stay abreast of the threats

         16  encountered at our schools, new equipment is being

         17  made available through the upgrade of existing

         18  baggage x- ray equipment.  We are replacing old x-

         19  ray machines with machines that possess enhanced

         20  detection capabilities.  The Department has

         21  purchased 22 new security detection devices that

         22  have a Threat Image Projection, TIP, technology.

         23  This technology produces images that detect the

         24  presence of organic and non- organic materials, as

         25  well as explosive and narcotic threats.  It also has
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          2  the ability to magnify an image up to 16 times, all

          3  without opening the students parcel.

          4                 The Department has also acquired a

          5  Field Command Post Vehicle that we intend to utilize

          6  by the School Safety Division Special Service Unit.

          7  The command post serves as a base of operations for

          8  Police Department, School Safety and youth based

          9  events such as demonstrations, emergencies,

         10  evacuations and mobilizations, as well as, major

         11  events where large groups of school age youth are

         12  anticipated to attend, such as the PSAL Basketball

         13  Championships held at Madison Square Garden and the

         14  PSAL Baseball Championships that are held at Yankee

         15  and Shea Stadiums.

         16                 Lastly, I will address the bill

         17  before you for consideration today, Intro. No. 490.

         18  The bill mandates that video security cameras be

         19  installed at all entrance and exit doors in every

         20  school operated by the Department of Education,

         21  apparently within a period of 90- days.

         22                 As the former Housing Borough

         23  Commander for Bronx and Queens, where video

         24  surveillance cameras were installed in six housing

         25  developments, I am very familiar with the benefits
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          2  and complications that video surveillance present.

          3  Certainly, video surveillance can augment

          4  traditional crime fighting techniques.  In fact,

          5  Closed Circuit TV serves as a useful deterrent in

          6  some instances.  Moreover, experts and lay persons

          7  agree that video images are a powerful investigative

          8  and identification tool.           However, I must

          9  also call your attention to the facts that Closed

         10  Circuit TV is expensive to purchase, time consuming

         11  to install and labor intensive to monitor.

         12                 We will continue to work in

         13  partnership with the Department of Education to

         14  tailor security coverage to the needs of each

         15  school.  As Mr. Tucker has indicated, we have

         16  provided the services of the NYPD's Technical

         17  Assistance Response Unit, as well at the School

         18  Safety Division's in- house electronic security

         19  expert to recommend the right fit for each

         20  individual school.

         21                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         22  discuss the issue of school safety, and I will be

         23  pleased to answer any of your questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you both.

         25                 Let me start just by saying that I
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          2  believe I heard both of you say, that this is a

          3  concept that you would endorse under certain

          4  conditions.  So let me say this.  If funding were

          5  found, let's say not City money at this point, let's

          6  there is Homeland Security money because you

          7  mentioned this Terrorism Task Force that you started

          8  in the schools.  Let's say that the State actually

          9  came up with one penny to help pay for security for

         10  our children, which they have not done yet since

         11  September 11, let's say funding were found.  Would

         12  both of you agree that this was something that was

         13  something that would help protect our children?

         14                 MR. TUCKER: Absolutely.  I think

         15  anything that adds value to that whole process.  As

         16  I mentioned before this is about being comprehensive

         17  and thoughtful in ways to effect school climate and

         18  as we talked about cameras that are certainly

         19  particularly state of the art.  Video surveillance

         20  would certainly add to that effort.  So, absolutely.

         21                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  It is my

         22  belief also that closed circuit television would be

         23  an added asset to our crime fighting within the

         24  schools.  But, it is not anything -- everything

         25  would be based on the cameras, we have to work
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          2  together with all our other programs that we have in

          3  place.  But, as an added deterrent it would be

          4  excellent to have.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Absolutely, I

          6  agree.  Thank you.  Mr. Tucker you talked about the

          7  Pilot Program in ten schools that exist now.  Is

          8  that actually operating or is it in the process of

          9  being installed?

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, the installation

         11  is just about complete in about 90 percent of the

         12  schools, so we are just waiting for one school, Taft

         13  maybe to have it, and that will happen within the

         14  next couple of weeks.  That's one of the new video,

         15  the digital videos that I referred to.  But yes, in

         16  the other schools as I said in the testimony, we

         17  made repairs to some of the systems that were in

         18  existence that have been inoperable and those are

         19  complete, and then we added some new systems to a

         20  couple of our schools, Prospect Heights and one

         21  other, that is complete.  So we are pretty much

         22  there.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So nine of the

         24  ten are up and operating?

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Can you explain

          3  for us exactly what the systems entailed, do they

          4  entail central monitoring, how many cameras do

          5  exist, and what the effect has been so far.

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  It varies from school to

          7  school as I indicated.  They are mostly CCTV's, so

          8  video surveillance.  They are monitored some from

          9  the lobby consoles at the front desks, others are

         10  located, the monitors, in a specific office and

         11  monitored from that location.

         12                 I think it is too early to know what

         13  the implications have been with respect to those

         14  schools, and some of them have had them a while but

         15  we had not put a specific evaluation process in

         16  place, but as I say in a testimony there is

         17  something that we want to look at going forward.

         18  One thing that is clear is that there has not been

         19  any uniformity in the way the Department has

         20  structured its purchase and installation of systems.

         21    And so, consequently, not only has there not been

         22  an evaluation, but there has not been in some cases

         23  on going maintenance of those systems.

         24                 So that all has to be something that

         25  we are looking at and that is why we are moving down
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          2  the road, putting standards in place that would

          3  allow us from now on, when we purchase equipment

          4  anywhere for the system, that we do it with some

          5  scrutiny and according to some guidelines that make

          6  sense in consultation with Police Department so that

          7  we make sure that we are putting them in the right

          8  places number one, and number two that we are giving

          9  it the proper attention in terms of how it can be

         10  monitored and from where.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And how long

         12  have they running for at this time?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  I am sorry?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How long have

         15  they been in operation, these systems?

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  We started the

         17  installation and the upgrades last spring and that

         18  has continued right through the summer and even into

         19  the fall.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  You testified

         21  that it cost $700,000 I believe for the ten schools

         22  you are operating right now. Can you break those

         23  costs down for us as to how much the cameras cost

         24  and what other expenses were involved.

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  The easiest way to break
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          2  it down is the two systems that I mentioned for Taft

          3  and for JFK High Schools, those are the new systems.

          4    The digital systems the network based systems,

          5  they are, they cost us just under $400,000.  Those

          6  are relatively modest systems but I think adequate

          7  for those two buildings.  And if you know JFK is

          8  very large building.  I think we installed 26

          9  cameras in that particular building, 25 or 26.

         10                 With respect to the balance of the

         11  cost those were roughly $150,000 for the repairs

         12  that were made to the six buildings that had systems

         13  in place but those systems were inoperable.  So that

         14  is roughly how the $700,000 breaks out.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Let's see.  Two

         16  systems cost, I believe $400,000, you said.

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  Just under $400,000.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So that is

         19  approximately $200,000 for one school and $200,000

         20  for the other.

         21                 MR. TUCKER:  I think that is right.

         22  Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  One of those

         24  schools is, I am not familiar with it, is one of the

         25  largest in the system?
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  That is correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  So all schools

          4  would not cost that amount of money to put the

          5  system in?

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  Probably unlikely, but

          7  again it depends on the nature of the system.  As I

          8  said, this was a modified system that we put in.  We

          9  did it as a pilot so we can test the technology

         10  number one.  We are trying to take advantage the

         11  fact that we are on the internet and we can use

         12  existing, they are like wireless systems, so we are

         13  trying to take advantage of that and to see whether

         14  gives us more utility.  So I think that we just have

         15  to be careful.  It is a school by school, case by

         16  case basis and what we want to do is I think to

         17  examine the real need for each building and get the

         18  specifications, do the assessment, and then

         19  determine based on that assessment what we think the

         20  system will cost.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  How are these

         22  systems monitored now under the Pilot Program?

         23                 MR. TUCKER:  They are monitored in

         24  various ways.  I mean many of the systems are

         25  monitored throughout the division of school
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          2  facilities.  So that they are monitored externally,

          3  not in the building but outside the building.

          4                 As I alluded to a moment ago, there

          5  are a number of others that are monitored right

          6  there in the school.  The monitors are placed in

          7  either the lobby at a console as a part of visitor

          8  control procedures or alternatively they are placed

          9  in some of the ones that we just installed.  They

         10  are placed in strategically throughout the building,

         11  even in the principal's office, the dean's office,

         12  and other locations, depending on who the person is

         13  on staff who will be monitoring those particular

         14  cameras.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And that is

         16  determined on a case by case bases?

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes it is.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now you also

         19  mentioned that some of these cameras were not just

         20  in exits and entrances, they were actually inside

         21  the schools.  At what type of locations?

         22                 MR. TUCKER:  Stairwells, cafeterias,

         23  I think in none of our cases are cameras mounted in

         24  classrooms, but in those other areas in the building

         25  they will be mounted.  And again, some of the places
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          2  are obvious.  You talk about exits and exits or is

          3  it just monitoring hallways that cover multiply

          4  exits and entrances is one way to do it.  We also

          5  have it mounted on the exterior of buildings as well

          6  to cover parks, playgrounds and immediate

          7  surrounding streets surrounding the buildings.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  It is important

          9  to know that this bill does not mandate those

         10  cameras yet at least, something we are discussing

         11  but it would not eliminate the possibility of those

         12  existing it at your discretion.  Obviously working

         13  together if you wanted those additional cameras at

         14  those additional locations.

         15                 Chief Nelson, obviously all crime

         16  would not be prevented or deterred by this type of a

         17  bill.  There is crime right now occurring in the

         18  schools which would not be prevented obviously from

         19  an intruder from coming into the school.  Your

         20  statistics based on how much, which would help us to

         21  determine how much crime is committed within the

         22  school and how much might be

         23  commented by an intruded coming into the school?

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  We find that

         25  the bulk of the incidents that happen within the
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          2  school is student on student, some cases student

          3  maybe teach on staff, and very rarely staff on

          4  student.  And we looked at our assaults and our

          5  robberies for the last school year, we found that

          6  2.9 percent of felony assaults happened with an

          7  intruder, someone that came in.  That is only ten

          8  out of 348 felony assaults.  And, then we even

          9  looked even more closely we found out that eight of

         10  the victims of those ten victims were SSA, School

         11  Safety Agents doing their jobs, stopping that

         12  intruder from coming into the school.  So it is a

         13  low number.

         14                 We also looked at the robberies and

         15  it was even lower than that.  One out of 266

         16  robberies that occurred in school was identified

         17  where it was an outside intruder that actually came

         18  in.  So the bulk of our incidents that happen in

         19  schools are student on student.  However, for your

         20  bill it does not say that it is not -- that the

         21  statistics are low, but for your bill I would still

         22  say that it is a good tool to have those cameras at

         23  those entrances and those exits so we can see who is

         24  coming who is going out at any time.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you for
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          2  that.  I think that we can both agree that one

          3  perhaps sexual assault committed by an intruder is

          4  one too many.

          5                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  One too

          6  many.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We've heard

          8  that before.

          9                 I would also like to introduce

         10  Council Members Recchia, Jennings, and Martinez who

         11  joined us.

         12                 Thank you gentlemen.  I have many

         13  other questions. Let me defer now to my co- chair

         14  and come back later.  Chair Moskowitz.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.  I

         16  just want to ask you a few questions about your

         17  testimony before speaking specifically about the

         18  issues of cameras.

         19                 You mentioned Mr. Tucker that, I

         20  believe that it was in your testimony, we are going

         21  to have ten Regional Safety Administrators.  Could

         22  you tell me how many have been hired?

         23                 MR. TUCKER:  All ten have been hired.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  All ten.

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  In your

          3  testimony you said you expected.

          4                 MR TUCKER:  Oh, I am sorry.  No, then

          5  let me be clear.  I probably said "expected" because

          6  it took us awhile to have them all on board, but in

          7  any event, all ten are, have been hired, they were

          8  on board when we started school in September.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  And

         10  the Counter Terrorism Unit, which I presume is new,

         11  what is the sort of dollar figure approximately that

         12  Unit has?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Dollar

         14  figure?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Right.  In

         16  other words, how much does the Unit spend on its

         17  efforts?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON: On its

         19  efforts.  Well, basically I have a Captain that is

         20  assigned there and also a Manager from School Safety

         21  Division, and we have a Police Officer, a Sergeant,

         22  and we have some School Safety Agents that are

         23  there. They attend -- I can not give you a dollar

         24  figure, but they attend meetings of all our Counter

         25  Terrorism Bureau.  They respond to threats to the
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          2  schools, bomb threats, things of that nature.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  It

          4  sounds like a rather small, we are not talking about

          5  some enormous initiative with hundreds of millions

          6  of dollars --

          7                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Absolutely

          8  not.  No.  It is a small unit, but it does a

          9  fantastic job.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Okay.  I

         11  wanted to ask and I think these questions are

         12  important as the kind of background or context for

         13  my colleague's bill.  The State came out with this

         14  Persistently Dangerous List and as I understand it,

         15  there were two schools on the list and 13 on the

         16  Watch List.

         17                 My question is, if you put yourself

         18  in the position of a parent without the kind of --

         19  those schools were generated, I have no idea how

         20  they were generated, what the formula is that

         21  constitutes Persistently Dangerous.  But, from a

         22  parents point of view, how many of our 1,200 schools

         23  would you count as persistently dangerous?

         24                 MR. TUCKER:  Let me make just one

         25  clarification. That we have two, you are right.
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          2  Correct, that we have two on the persistent that

          3  have been designated in the State actually, and they

          4  just happen to be in our City as Persistently

          5  Dangerous.  The Watch List is not yet been

          6  promulgated.

          7                 The State initially identified

          8  potentially 13 schools that we -- that might show up

          9  on that list.  We think that there will be fewer

         10  than 13 once the State comes back to us.  We

         11  responded to their request for information, provided

         12  it, and so hopefully it will be fewer.

         13                 But, with respect to your question,

         14  persistently dangerous is sort of a term of art that

         15  has come out by the State and so I -- it is not a

         16  definition nor is it a term that we have used either

         17  through the Police Department or that the Department

         18  of Education has come up with.

         19  `              What we try to do is monitor schools,

         20  and I have said this before, across the board.  I

         21  mean we did identify ten schools many months ago and

         22  since that time that we have just tried to focus on

         23  those schools.  Identify those schools that based on

         24  either crime statistics or other types of events

         25  happening in those buildings, suggest that they need
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          2  attention.

          3                   And so, the whole purpose of our

          4  strategy that I eluded to in my testimony, is to

          5  really think more comprehensively about not just the

          6  crime data, but what is happening with respect to

          7  suspensions, what is happening with respect to

          8  truancy, attendance and other activities taken place

          9  in those buildings. And, to the extent that those

         10  things that are happening that result in disorder,

         11  that we take the position that we need to begin to

         12  work on those issues and work with those schools as

         13  they occur.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I appreciate

         15  that, but as a mother of a five- year old, and you

         16  know, parents want to know that. There is a meaning,

         17  I understand that it is a rather technical term and

         18  there is a complicated algorithm that goes into the

         19  nomenclature in which of the schools get designated.

         20    From a kind of ordinary person's perspective,

         21  Persistently Dangerous, is a quite meaningful term.

         22  It means persistent, means it repeats its self and

         23  dangerous can mean a variety of things.

         24                 But, if you were to put yourself in

         25  the perspective of a parent and you were looking at
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          2  our 1,200 schools, how many, I want a number, how do

          3  you think would fall into that category,

          4  understanding that your definition of Persistently

          5  Dangerous maybe slightly different then my

          6  definition, but --

          7                 MR. TUCKER:  I do not mean to be

          8  difficult, I just think -- I can't answer that

          9  question.  But, I will tell you that- let me just

         10  give you one example of the definition.  The State

         11  uses three percent.  It is based on its ratio of

         12  three percent per 100 students or 30 percent per

         13  thousand.  That is the threshold, and this relates

         14  to, as Chief Nelson related, it relates to the

         15  number of weapons possessions in a particular

         16  building within a particular two- year period.  So,

         17  that is the standard that they have applied.

         18                 Interestingly enough the two schools

         19  that were designated on our list, Street Academy and

         20  I think 371.  One is a special education school and

         21  Street Academy is one of our alternative high

         22  schools.

         23                 The fact is that the percentage

         24  numbers of weapons that were discovered and we call

         25  them incidence, the fact is that those incidence,
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          2  those weapons never made it into the building. They

          3  were all in about 80 percent of the cases, I think,

          4  those weapons were stopped by Chief Nelson's staff

          5  who run the magnetometers, because they are both

          6  scanning schools and so the weapons never made it

          7  in.  And, so hence, my point about that the whole

          8  notion of persistently dangerous is sometimes

          9  misleading.              CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I

         10  do not question that, but I do want to push you.

         11  Are we talking a 100 schools, are we talking 500

         12  schools that have repeated problems that are of

         13  concern?  Or, are we talking 1,200 schools, every

         14  school in the City of New York has a major problem.

         15  Surely that it is not 1,200 and surely it is not

         16  two, and it is somewhere in between.

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  I think, you know it

         18  depends on the schools, I think I am comfortable

         19  saying that clearly not all 1,200 of our schools

         20  have problems.  It depends how you define a problem,

         21  but their schools have issues and there is a --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Okay, let me

         23  use your term now.  How many of them have issues, a

         24  very current term.

         25                 MR. TUCKER:  It depends how you
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          2  define an issue.  I mean if you've got -- we have a

          3  million one hundred thousand kids, kids get into

          4  trouble, kids do things, principals deal with those

          5  issues day to day.  Our focus is on what does the

          6  crime data tell us and we try to manage what we do

          7  based on that.  So, our attention will be directed

          8  to a school based on a call from a principal or

          9  based on an incident that occurs, as you eluded to

         10  that there has been a number of those incidents.

         11  Certainly we are focused on Franklin Kay Lane, we

         12  are focused on Grand Dice and some of the other

         13  schools that we have had in the last couple of weeks

         14  since schools have opened.  Problems.

         15                 There are other schools that we are

         16  so focused on that have experienced not just

         17  incidents of crime but have traffic pattern problems

         18  and those kinds of things.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Right, I

         20  guess I am troubled by, you know, we are very

         21  willing to say how many schools do we have where an

         22  insufficient number of children are reading at grade

         23  level.  And, yet there is a hesitancy to put a

         24  numerical statistic, so I would like to come back at

         25  a later point, I really think it is important for
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          2  the public --

          3                 MR. TUCKER:  Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: -- For the

          5  public to understand.  Based on your definition, how

          6  many schools are persistently dangerous?  But I do

          7  not want to press the point to much.  Let me just,

          8  before I get to the security cameras and it is my

          9  second to last question, I just want to ask.  If

         10  money were no issue, which we all know it is, what

         11  would be your top five expenditures?  If you didn't

         12  have to crunch numbers can you just sort of and I do

         13  not know if you need to confer or --

         14                 MR. TUCKER:  When you say just in

         15  clarification, when you say top five expenditures,

         16  with respect to video surveillance?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: No, with

         18  respect to keeping our kids safe and having orderly

         19  school environment.  What would you do if you just,

         20  if someone said, I am going to write you a blank

         21  check and you do not have to worry about

         22  expenditures.  What would be the top five things you

         23  would want to spend money on?

         24                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  I will

         25  answer part of your question, I will not say the top
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          2  five, but if you gave me a dream list for Chief

          3  Nelson's School Safety Division.  Give me some more

          4  agents for the schools.  Also, more technology, more

          5  scanning at different schools, better equipment for

          6  my agents at the schools. I am thinking -- I am very

          7  selfish this year, I am thinking of the School

          8  Safety Division, NYPD, what would it take to make my

          9  job that much easier, their job that much easier.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  When you say

         11  equipment for the Agents, just can you give me some

         12  flesh and bones on that, what is that?

         13                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Like I said,

         14  scanning equipment, state of the art, whatever it is

         15  that they have out there that they can carry.  Like

         16  we have a Pilot Program in the Bronx where we are

         17  issuing YD's to youth now.  Instead of calling a cop

         18  off the street, my Safety Agent in Taft High School,

         19  issue the agent, issue the YD, Youth Deferral.

         20  Well, maybe computerize that, that is something the

         21  NYPD is looking on doing.  That would be helpful.

         22  Do you want to jump in?

         23                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes, I will jump in, I

         24  will jump in. The other things that I would add, is

         25  maybe to Gerald's list, if he does not mind, is
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          2  staff development.  It is a big issue in terms of

          3  training teachers, principals, as well as School

          4  Safety Agents, would be an important asset.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And, can you

          6  just rank it? Is it more agents, then staff to

          7  technology improvements, or is it technology first

          8  then --

          9                 MR. TUCKER:  Well, I think, I do not

         10  think it is wrong either way.  If it is a list of

         11  five things, technology improvements is certainly

         12  one of them, staff and more staff, such as Safety

         13  Agents is certainly part of that.

         14                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Just one

         15  more thing, since you how you have given me your

         16  dream list.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I guess you

         18  do not get asked that question often, so --

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  No, that's pretty rare.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  A better

         21  radio system for my agents.  They have their own.

         22  We are not on the Standard Radio System that the

         23  Police Officers with the NYPD carry.  We have our

         24  own radio system and it is antiquated, it is 20

         25  years old and there are a lot of blind spots out
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          2  there for the safety of my agents.  I wish they had

          3  the latest equipment so when my agents are calling

          4  for help, there is an incident going on, instead of

          5  him bouncing from one agent to the other trying to

          6  get to Central, he will have the state of the art

          7  radio equipment.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, it sounds

          9  like cameras are in there, but it is part of a

         10  larger package.

         11                 MR. TUCKER: Yes.  When you say

         12  technology, it could be cameras, it could be visitor

         13  control apparatus, it could be a Cass (phonetic)

         14  System that we use for monitoring students in

         15  buildings.  That is something that we are looking at

         16   --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I'm sorry.

         18  You have a what system?

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  They call it Cass.  It

         20  is a system for monitoring students for when they

         21  come in.  Whether they belong in the building, and

         22  it tracks their attendance and so forth.  But, there

         23  are some capabilities, there are ways in which we

         24  can expand that capacity of that technology to help

         25  us better monitor school buildings.  The other thing
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          2  that I would add is in terms of services that are

          3  provided.  We do a lot of right now, a lot of

          4  conflict resolution, mediation conflict resolution

          5  in our schools. I do not think we can do too much of

          6  that.  I think the more of that we can do and

          7  sometimes that is a challenge.  I mean, there is an

          8  organization called The Counsel for Unity that you

          9  probably are certainly are aware of and has done a

         10  lot of good work in that area.  But it cost money to

         11  make that, to bring those services to individual

         12  schools.

         13                 So those kind of services I think,

         14  prevention, intervention activities, the capacity to

         15  provide students with the kind of support around

         16  guidance counseling and youth engagement, youth

         17  development types of services that are, exist but

         18  exist in somewhat meager form.  So if we had a, as

         19  you say a wish list, I would try to strengthen that

         20  area significantly, because I think it adds value to

         21  what we are trying to accomplish overall.

         22                 CHAIRMAN MOSKOWITZ:  That is very,

         23  very helpful. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         25  Council Member.  I would also like to welcome
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          2  Council Members Monserrate, Yassky, Gentile and

          3  Koppell, and go to Council Member Dilan for

          4  questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Thank you Mr.

          6  Chair.  I just have a brief question for Officer

          7  Nelson.  In your testimony toward the end you stated

          8  that -- your testimony sounded overall positive, but

          9  you stated that you had a problem with the 90- day

         10  period if the legislation was enacted.

         11                 In your mind and your estimation if

         12  the legislation was enacted, how much time would

         13  your agency need to prepare all the schools to get

         14  this equipment up and running?

         15                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Twelve

         16  hundred schools, each school's is a different plant

         17  within itself.  You have to do surveys for all of

         18  them.  It is a monumental job and it is an

         19  impossibility to say that we are going to have 1,200

         20  schools up in 90 days.

         21                 As Mr. Tucker has stated in his

         22  testimony, one of the questions, he has been working

         23  since the Spring to get ten schools up and we are

         24  still only 90 percent up with those.  So to cover

         25  1,200 schools, you have to look at them, prioritized
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          2  them, which ones we feel based on incidence of

          3  whatever is going on in that particular area, which

          4  ones that we have to put in first and put them in

          5  priority order.  I am quite sure that I will be

          6  collecting pension checks by the time all 1,200

          7  schools are done.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Pension

          9  checks, that long?

         10                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Yes.  That

         11  long.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yes, I think

         13  if, you know 90 days I can see as being

         14  unreasonable, but I think, you look relatively

         15  young, I think it could be done some time in your

         16  career.

         17                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  I am generally

         19  supportive of this bill just based on the

         20  information that I have, but the one main piece of

         21  information that we have that is not available to us

         22  is the overall cost of it and I sure that as we get

         23  closer to -- as we deal with the bill more in

         24  Committee we will get that number. And I want to

         25  thank you for your answer.
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          2                 I was also a little disturbed to hear

          3  that your School Safety Agents are dealing with

          4  radio equipment that is 20 years old.  I think that

          5  is something that should be more fundamental, and

          6  Mr. Chairman I think that should be the subject of

          7  maybe another hearing.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

          9  Council Member. Very good questions and you should

         10  know we have been consulting with the Police

         11  Department prior to this, and it obviously will not

         12  be 90 days for 1,200 schools and it obviously will

         13  be before any of us are getting a pension plan.  But

         14  we are thinking of amending the bill right now,

         15  working with you in doing this to determine a

         16  certain amount of schools over a certain time period

         17  to be phased in over a certain amount of time, so it

         18  will get done and like I said before any of us here,

         19  except some of us, are getting pension plans.

         20  Council Member Jackson.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you

         22  Mr. Chair and good morning and thank you for coming

         23  in and giving input on this subject.

         24                 You know, I listen to your response,

         25  and it seems it is obvious that the 90 days is,
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          2  assuming if this bill turned into law, would be

          3  unrealistic.  And it appears based on your answer

          4  that to realistically evaluate each of the buildings

          5  within the system could take possibly as long as a

          6  year possibly two years, and then to install the

          7  equipment necessary.  So, I am just curious as to

          8  have you, either one of you in your departments in

          9  your respective positions, looked at assuming that

         10  this bill was law, how long will it take to evaluate

         11  and to install all of the equipment and give a

         12  realistic time frame, one year, two years, three

         13  years, or from one to three years, so I want to know

         14  that.

         15                 And also have you looked at the total

         16  cost?  Because I am concerned about the cost factor

         17  involved, if in fact if we were to implement this

         18  bill and turn it into law, what would it cost the

         19  system overall in order to install, maintain, and

         20  hire the personnel to monitor all of the appropriate

         21  equipment.  Have you, either one of you, in your

         22  respective rolls, considered the time frame and the

         23  total cost factor.  And I would like to hear any

         24  figures, if you have any or what your best guest

         25  would be.
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  When you say in terms of

          3  the time frame.  I think we would have to put our

          4  heads together. The way we would work it, we would

          5  sit down and think about what, if we had the

          6  funding, what the plan, we would put together a plan

          7  as to how, which schools we would focus on first and

          8  then sort of begin structure a plan that would say

          9  that we would do the assessments and we would work

         10  out, just as you would any sort of strategy for a

         11  project.  And, that could take a relatively short

         12  period of time. I mean, you look at and we would

         13  figure out which schools and we figure what criteria

         14  we want to use as a baseline and then we would go

         15  ahead and, as I would envision it, figure out which

         16  schools we want to service first.  We base that on

         17  statistics or what is going on in a particular

         18  school building, whether if it is a high school or

         19  middle school or whatever.  But, I think generally,

         20  and I do not know if Chief Nelson would agree, but I

         21  think that is something you can do in fairly short

         22  order, coming up with a plan and deciding how you

         23  would begin to do the installations in the

         24  respective schools.

         25                 With respect to costs, our best guest
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          2  right now is that it could, and it could run into

          3  hundreds of millions of dollars in terms of how you

          4  would actually fund this such a venture given the

          5  scope of a project that we are discussing, 1,200

          6  schools is lot of schools and, more importantly they

          7  are individual school buildings and each one, as I

          8  said before, we would be looking at in a different

          9  and in terms of what the need is and so that there

         10  would be a range of type of installations that we

         11  would do.  But it could easily run into multiple

         12  hundreds or millions of dollars.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I am sorry,

         14  what I did not hear and I understand as far as

         15  priorities and determining which one should go up

         16  first, but what I did not hear was a response from

         17  either one of you as to how long do you believe it

         18  would take to complete the project from assessment

         19  to implementation where you are fully operating in

         20  1,200 schools?  Would that be a year, three years, I

         21  am talking realistically under the circumstances all

         22  things considered.

         23                 MR. TUCKER:  I would be happy to come

         24  back to you with a figure, but I can tell you we

         25  have not done that type of analysis to determine
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          2  just what the length of time would be.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But within

          4  the ten project school that you are working on, how

          5  long have you been working on that?

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  As I said, we started

          7  that in last Spring.  But, don't forget those were

          8  in some cases, in six of those schools, they already

          9  had systems in place.  So, there were repairs and

         10  upgrades to those systems so that is not necessarily

         11  a good indicator of the project we are now

         12  discussing.  In four of the schools there were

         13  actually new systems and they were completed in a

         14  relatively short period of time, but again, those

         15  were not full blown setups.

         16                 So, I just would not want throw out a

         17  figure and say we can do this in a year or a year

         18  and a half without being able to sit down and be

         19  more thoughtful and confer about what makes the most

         20  sense in terms of how this project would unfold.

         21  Assistant Chief Nelson.

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  For certain

         23  schools, like new construction, I am quite sure, all

         24  the new construction right now is being wired in

         25  where video cameras are already going to be in
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          2  place, things like that.  And you might have some

          3  schools built recently where the hardware, the

          4  networking is already there.  So just to install the

          5  cameras, fine, but a lot of our facilities, a lot of

          6  DOE's facilities, old facilities where you have to

          7  put in conduit, you have to put up whatever it takes

          8  to put it into school to get the cameras in there.

          9  So, it is hard to give an estimate on time for the

         10  entire system.  Some schools would be a breeze, I

         11  know that from the new schools that are built cause

         12  it is already wired for such, but the other schools

         13  where there is no wiring what so ever you have to

         14  scratch and it is hard to give a time on that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So would it

         16  be safe to say that it would be more than two years

         17  for the total system was up and running?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  My opinion,

         19  yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         22  Council Member Jackson.  Quickly, you said it before

         23  it is $200,000 approximately for one of the largest

         24  schools in the City, so you have to assume $100,000

         25  for an average size school, which I do not accept
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          2  because I have done wiring in my own buildings, and

          3  I cannot imagine wiring costing that much and video

          4  cameras, but we will get into that at a later date.

          5  But even at a $100,000 at a school at a 1,000

          6  schools, do the math in my head that is a hundred

          7  million, that is not hundreds of millions, and that

          8  would be a top end estimate. Where am I wrong in

          9  that analysis?

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  I guess in answer to

         11  your question Chairman, it really is, the point that

         12  I made earlier, which is a school by school basis

         13  and the fact of the matter is each school is going

         14  to be different.  In the case of both, I think Taft

         15  and JFK, which are the schools that we installed the

         16  new Network Ray Systems, those schools were fully

         17  wired and prepared to receive the technology.

         18                 That is not the case as Chief Nelson

         19  suggested in many of our other schools, particularly

         20  our high schools that have been around a long time

         21  and you know the buildings are old, the

         22  infrastructure is different, even the structure of

         23  the building is fiscally in some cases now depending

         24  on the design will require more cameras depending on

         25  what you want to cover.  Halls are not straight, you
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          2  have circular buildings, or curved hallways, that

          3  makes, that influences and will impact where you put

          4  cameras and how many you will need.  And, then it

          5  will also influence how you wire the building to the

          6  extent that you can not do network based cameras

          7  that are wireless.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,  But

          9  you did do two schools, one of which being the

         10  largest in the City, much more extensively than this

         11  bill would require for $400,000.  Council Member

         12  Recchia.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Thank you,

         14  Chairman.  Good morning Mr. Tucker.

         15                 MR. TUCKER:  Good morning.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  You

         17  testified that in Taft and JFK you started last

         18  spring and those cameras are now in those schools?

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  That is correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.  And

         21  those were schools that did not have any cameras at

         22  all?

         23                 MR. TUCKER:  That is correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  And you

         25  monitor that progressively.  Correct?
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Okay.  I

          4  gave money for Lafayette High School in 2002, it is

          5  here September 7, 2003.  The cameras are not in.

          6  Lafayette according to the newspapers is one of the

          7  most dangerous high schools in New York City.  I

          8  have here a copy of the agreement that was signed

          9  off in July 2003, the cameras are still not in the

         10  schools.  It took a year to get this agreement and

         11  now when I inquire through my own investigation to

         12  see why, what is holding it up, it is because this

         13  agreement is sitting on the desk, I am not going to

         14  name the person, because I do not want to embarrass

         15  the person, and the School Construction Authority on

         16  that person's desk, cause that person does not care

         17  about Lafayette.  You know what, it is my

         18  constituents, I need your help.  You have to come

         19  down to see that this moves progressively and when

         20  we say two years for a system to be in full place, I

         21  think that is, I think that we can move quicker.

         22  And here you have a City Council, we are not, the

         23  Department of Ed is not laying out a dime.   This is

         24  the money that the Speaker, myself, and other

         25  members came forward with to do.
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          2                 MR. TUCKER:  Listen, my response is

          3  that I agree with you Councilman, and I will follow

          4  up.  There is no reason that it should take that

          5  long particularly if we have the agreement in place.

          6    I do not know what the reasons are and I am not

          7  going to make excuses, so I will follow up with the

          8  School Construction Authority and I will get back to

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  All right,

         11  but also if we are going to proceed with this and

         12  help the schools and Council members want to work

         13  with you, we can not wait a whole year, and not be

         14  advised and when you call up -- we had to call up, I

         15  mean we had to call up day in and day out.

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  This is something.  In

         17  my testimony I-

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Something

         19  has to be corrected here.

         20                 MR. TUCKER: -- Well, what I said to

         21  you earlier, is I agree with you.  One of the things

         22  that hasn't existed historically in this department

         23  is a system or a standard system for guiding this

         24  process.  I mean it is very much a system of,

         25  particularly under the old structure where you had
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          2  school districts and you had a number of people kind

          3  of doing their own things with respect to this

          4  process.  We are now trying to centralize this so

          5  that there are some controls in place so that it

          6  makes sense and that we can guide both not just the

          7  process itself for the sake of guiding the process,

          8  but to insure that we get the right price for

          9  things, to ensure that it moves in a timely fashion

         10  so that there is project management over the

         11  installation of whatever the technology is.  If it

         12  is video surveillance fine, but whatever else it is

         13  that we think schools need and want we help that

         14  process along.  And this is, I think an example or

         15  illustration of that.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Because, if

         17  you want a real partnership with the Department of

         18  Ed, we are not the enemy.

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  And you want

         21  us to help them out, and help the schools out, then

         22  we need to know exactly what is going on, not that

         23  nobody knows.  But, I am telling you that I think

         24  that I would like to sit down with you and your

         25  office and see how we can make this work better.
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 MR. TUCKER:  Absolutely.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

          5  Member Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you Madam

          7  Chair. Council Member Recchia, not to try to out do

          8  you, but I had allocated money in June of 2001,

          9  along with former Council Member Jay O'Donovan who

         10  allocated, I allocated $450,000 former Council

         11  Member O'Donovan allocated one million.  That money

         12  was later cut in the spring of 2002, and if you

         13  recall the feud that we had on Staten Island with

         14  regarding the 30 million.

         15                 I was told by one of the folks high

         16  up on our staff that folks from the Department of Ed

         17  said that we will put the money back for cameras but

         18  let's see him spend it.  That has changed and I

         19  would like to think that has changed because some

         20  folks who were in the hierarchy are no longer there.

         21    So, I understand your frustration I would like to

         22  think that there are different folks in place who

         23  see the efficacy of these tools.

         24                 Just along the lines of Chairman

         25  Vallone's question about the cost.  When we
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          2  allocated the money back in 2001, then Council

          3  Member O'Donovan and I were told that we would be

          4  able to do many more schools than we are actually

          5  are doing.  Has there been in the last two years or

          6  certain time period a spike in the costs attributed

          7  to putting these cameras in and if so, is there a

          8  reason why?

          9                 MR. TUCKER:  Not that I am aware.  A

         10  spike, you mean in terms of the products themselves?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  In the terms of

         12  the cost?

         13                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes, not that I know of.

         14    In terms of industry costs, I don't know that

         15  there has been.  No.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Okay.  Because

         17  I was told that some of this work was being done by

         18  folks, and not to get too technical, it was

         19  something about, it was considered low voltage work,

         20  which met that the prevailing wage kicked in and

         21  then shortly after allocating the money back in

         22  2001, this kind of kicked in and you had a dollar

         23  that could stretch a mile now, is a half a mile. Is

         24  there any --

         25                 MT.TUCKER:  I don't know the answer
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          2  to the question, but I think this is another symptom

          3  of the point that I made before as it relates to the

          4  sort of how this whole process is managed. And, I

          5  think that this, that there is no question in my

          6  mind that in the past there have been systems, or

          7  even when funds were provided, that there was no

          8  real clear thought given to what was going to be

          9  installed, how it was going to be installed, who did

         10  the assessment, and those kinds of issues are

         11  important, they are critical.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Let me ask you

         13  one last related question.  This past weekend,

         14  ironically enough, I was approached by an individual

         15  who is affiliated with some sort of company and we

         16  had heard the word wireless bandied about.  He

         17  apparently has a product that is a wireless that

         18  would allow principals or deans to walk around with

         19  hand held monitors.

         20                 My questions is, how aggressive has

         21  the department been in reaching out to the private

         22  sector to the technology companies and how

         23  aggressive have they been in reaching out to the

         24  department saying that this is the latest, this is

         25  the state of the art material, why don't you
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          2  incorporate these in your schools?

          3                 MR. TUCKER:   Yes, we have been very

          4  aggressive, I think, at least in the very short

          5  period of time that I have been here in doing

          6  exactly that, reaching out to companies.  We have

          7  had at least three -- Robert, at least three

          8  companies, two or three? Okay. Many more than three

          9  companies that have come in, that we have talked

         10  with. I remember three in particular that I sat

         11  through the briefings and the technology that you --

         12  in fact, one company talked about the technology the

         13  hand held, the ability, that is part of the network

         14  based system that gives you the ability to look at

         15  it where school Safety Agents could carry that and

         16  know what is going on in particular in other parts

         17  of the building.  Yes, we are perusing that, it is

         18  part of our overall strategic plan to think about

         19  improving school climate.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  We also

         21  looked at other municipalities throughout the

         22  country to see exactly what they had. I was invited

         23  to go to DC.  I was told that they have a wireless

         24  system in all of their high schools.  I spoke to

         25  Bill Mazalosky and he is in charge of Department, he
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          2  is Safety in the Department of Education at the

          3  Federal Level, and he gave me a listing of all the

          4  different municipalities of what they had in place.

          5  So it is something that we are looking at.

          6                 When I first came on board I was told

          7  that I had eight inch monitoring cameras.  When I

          8  tried to get a feel of how many were out there, of

          9  monitoring cameras, what kind of cameras are in

         10  place, I had to speak to Ben.  I found out just the

         11  same thing he said, it is like an ogbog (phonetic)

         12  maybe you, at some time got some money for your

         13  district, and they put it up, they put it up.  Which

         14  was fine at that time.  I mean it was done years

         15  ago. Since then, me and Ben have spoken numerous

         16  times that we want to centralize this, look at the

         17  best way to do this, standardize it, and so we will

         18  know that whatever system is placed in a community

         19  in Brooklyn, it is the same system that is placed in

         20  a community in Staten Island, so we have some

         21  uniformity there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Council

         24  Member Vann.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you Madam
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          2  Chair.  Good morning gentlemen.

          3                 MR. TUCKER:  Good morning.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  From your

          5  testimony compels this question.  It is obvious that

          6  as desirable as video cameras are, given the nature,

          7  the magnitude of our school system, it is an

          8  exorbitant cost, you made it very clear.  And your

          9  statistics on crime in the schools is rather

         10  sobering to me because it is obvious that

         11  overwhelmingly most crime is by students.  Students

         12  on students, students on staff, whatever, but they

         13  are known, they are not people who are not known.

         14                 Given that fact and since we are

         15  going to deal with Towana in Wonderland, if all of

         16  this money was available as Professional Security

         17  People, if you had those hundreds of millions of

         18  dollars, would you want to put the video cameras as

         19  being the most effective way of providing security

         20  or is there another use for that money that would

         21  provide the level of security that we require?

         22                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  There is so

         23  much technology out there and we are here to speak

         24  about the video cameras.  I think that place with

         25  everything else that we have in place, different
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          2  programs that we develop within the NYPD, in

          3  conjunction with working with the different programs

          4  that we have in DOA, I like the idea of video

          5  cameras.  But, like I think Oddo said, it is not a

          6  panacea, it is something you have to work in

          7  conjunction with all the other things you have going

          8  on in that particular school.                There

          9  is no way I can sit here and tell you that I would

         10  not want video cameras in the schools.  It is

         11  another tool, it is a deterrent, it is something

         12  that you -- I look at my experience within the

         13  Housing Authority when we put it up, you put the

         14  posters up, this place is surveillanced by video

         15  cameras.  In the beginning you pick up more crime,

         16  because people it takes a while to get through that

         17  we are looking at you, and after a while it balances

         18  out and then you find the incidence start to go

         19  down. It is an excellent tool.  I would be,

         20  personally from the NYPD's perspective, I would be

         21  in favor of it.  Now, as far as other things, I

         22  mean, when you spoke, the other Councilman spoke

         23  about the different technologies coming out, I guess

         24  if someone came up to me about another wonder thing

         25  that just came out, I would look at that too.  But,
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          2  what I know of and that is on our plate right now,

          3  and we are speaking of video cameras, I see that as

          4  an excellent tool.

          5                 MR. TUCKER:  I would just add in

          6  response to your question, yes, the video

          7  surveillance equipment aside, we could use funding

          8  for other things as I mentioned before when

          9  Chairwoman Moskowitz asked her question as part of

         10  the wish list.  And yes, it is about balance, it is

         11  about being comprehensive and to the extent that we

         12  could funding not only into cameras if we had

         13  funding to do other things that relate to and have

         14  an impact on student behavior specifically.  And,

         15  there are a range of things that I mentioned

         16  earlier.  Conflict resolution is only one part of

         17  that.

         18                 But, it involves counseling trying to

         19  use other resources whether inside the department or

         20  community based organizations and services that are

         21  available.  Those kind of things that help impact on

         22  student behavior and work with students and

         23  families, all of those things I think are part of

         24  the plan to and would be helpful in dealing with and

         25  addressing school climate, and in particular school
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          2  incidence and crime.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  All right,

          4  thank you gentlemen.  Mr. Nelson, you spoke about

          5  TRACK, Truancy Reduction Alliance to Contact Kids.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  In brief how

          8  does that work?

          9                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Tracking is

         10  something that we deal with for truancy.  We have 13

         11  sites throughout the City. It works in conjunction

         12  with the DA's office, Children's Administrative

         13  Services, Department of Education, and if Al Vann's

         14  son was picked up for truancy, he would be brought

         15  to a TRACK Center where he is spoken to by a Social

         16  Worker to try to find out what the underlining

         17  problems, why you are cutting school.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  When you say

         19  picked up for truancy?

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  When is he

         22  picked up and how do you know that he is truant?

         23                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  AS of the

         24  22nd of this year, everyone should have their

         25  student cards, anyone that is not in school at the
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          2  time that school is supposedly going on, it is

          3  considered a truant.  That person is picked up if it

          4  is a TRACK site in his particular Borough, because

          5  we do not have one in the Bronx, he is brought right

          6  to that TRACK site, interviewed by a Social Worker

          7  to try to find out what the problems, his parent is

          8  called where he or she would have to come and pick

          9  up that child, and they do follow ups to make sure

         10  that there is no recidivism, why is this kid doing

         11  this.  We have had kids with all kinds of problems,

         12  some kids are just cutters or whatever.  That's what

         13  the TRACK is all about.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Thank you.

         15  Finally, New Beginnings Program, is that Mr. Tucker?

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  How does that

         18  work, how are the kids referred, how do you get to

         19  become a part of this New Beginning, what do you

         20  have to do?

         21                 MR. TUCKER:  New Beginnings focuses

         22  on youngsters who have been disruptive, but not

         23  necessarily youngsters who have been involved in

         24  criminal activity or who have processed weapons or

         25  committed violent acts.  This is high school only,

                                                            74

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  if just to refresh the Members recollection, we

          3  announced the New Beginnings Program's last fall and

          4  we started the program in the spring with six sites.

          5

          6                 The idea was to in speaking with

          7  Superintendents and Principals about how we could

          8  manage their buildings better, they all indicated

          9  that if there was a small percentage of students in

         10  their buildings responsible for a disproportionate

         11  number of disorder, a level of disorder in their

         12  buildings.  And, so if those students who were not

         13  cooperating and not getting along in the general

         14  education atmosphere were placed someplace else,

         15  that would do two things.  We could serve those kids

         16  better, perhaps, giving them the support they need,

         17  figure out what the issues were with them, and then

         18  also relieve some of the tension at the school

         19  building itself, and so education could continue.

         20  That is the thesis behind it.

         21                 We then opened these centers, we

         22  partnered with community based organizations that I

         23  mentioned earlier, some of those and others, to get

         24  these programs going.  We hired teachers who wanted

         25  to be in this project to work with these youngsters.
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          2    We now have 16 sites operating.  The students go

          3  to school from nine to three, they go off site, they

          4  remain on the school register where they are

          5  attending, but they attend classes at a CBO location

          6  during the nine to three, they are in a classroom

          7  and the ratio of students to teachers is one to ten.

          8    The teachers team teach along with the Community

          9  Based Staff and they provide the services and

         10  supports as they surface.

         11                   In terms of your question about how

         12  they are selected, we have asked each of the sending

         13  schools, there are a number of high schools

         14  participating in this, starting with the ten that I

         15  referenced in my testimony, and some others as well.

         16    But each school has a liaison, we asked that they

         17  form a small committee made up of Deans, Assistant

         18  Principals for security, Guidance Personnel, to

         19  identify the students.

         20                 So these are students who in the

         21  typical population for the beginning of the project

         22  really focused on ninth graders who were maybe over

         23  aged for grade, a year behind where they should be,

         24  so they were 15 or 16 years of age and in some cases

         25  they were older and that was the bulk of the
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          2  population.  And, we started serving those students.

          3                 The goal is to work with these

          4  students, they remain in the program for a semester,

          5  and the goal, the objective, is to have them sent

          6  back to their home school or to some other school

          7  depending on the outcome of the intervention, so to

          8  speak, during their tenure, their time in the

          9  program.  Try to get these kids back on track.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  In conclusion,

         11  how is that funded, that program?

         12                 MR. TUCKER:  We funded it out of a

         13  new need provided by the Mayor's office.  The

         14  teachers are paid for through the budget, the City

         15  tax levy budget, from the respected sending schools.

         16    And, the funding essentially for the CBOs comes

         17  out the external budget that I mentioned.  The cost

         18  of the project was about $5 million dollars, $6

         19  million dollars.

         20                 You are welcome.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  We have been

         22  joined by Council Member Gail Brewer and we were

         23  joined by Council Member Melinda Katz, I think she

         24  just stepped out.  Council Member Brewer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

                                                            77

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  very much.  I have a very quick question.  I am not

          3  on this Committee, but I have a lot of interests in

          4  schools and safety.  I have Brandise and King and

          5  Beacon and many other wonderful schools on the West

          6  Side.  I am not actually such a big fan perhaps of

          7  cameras, but as Chair of the Technology Committee, I

          8  am a big fan of some of the new opportunities.

          9  Health Member Oddo mentioned one company, we are

         10  both familiar with it, that is Wireless, that does

         11  provide the opportunity for a person to stand in one

         12  location and wirelessly communicate throughout the

         13  building.

         14                 So my question to you is, for those

         15  schools, because the reason I am not a huge fan is I

         16  am concerned about the cameras that get broken, and

         17  they do get broken, and I want to know how long does

         18  it take to fix a system that is down for one reason

         19  or the other?  And second, the person has to watch

         20  those monitors, and I have actually been in the

         21  rooms where some of these monitors are, and it is a

         22  pretty boring job, and it is also sometimes not done

         23  with the highest degree of, I would say

         24  intelligence, because it is hard to sit there all

         25  day and watch a monitor.
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          2                 So my question is how long does it

          3  take to get a system that is down for whatever

          4  reason, a broken camera, challenge in terms of the

          5  system itself, to get fixed?

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  Chief Nelson could

          7  probably speak to this with his experience with the

          8  Housing Authority and the need made be different,

          9  but I think that the point is that you have to have

         10  ongoing maintenance, and I think to answer your

         11  question, it may vary depending on the nature of the

         12  problem.  What you want to do is, and what we expect

         13  to do is put a system in place that provides for

         14  ongoing maintenance.  Some of the things -- that is

         15  something that didn't happen on a regular basis in

         16  the past at the department, as I understand it.

         17  There were no, even when funds were provided to

         18  install systems, one of the things that we fell

         19  short of the mark on, was providing funding to

         20  provide for ongoing maintenance.

         21                 Maintenance is important.  That is a

         22  big piece of this, that the cameras are not working

         23  and we spent the money to install them then we

         24  wasted money.  So it is really key to try to put a

         25  maintenance, preventative maintenance program in
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          2  place and try and make sure that systems are

          3  repaired as quickly as they possibly can, and take

          4  care where you place them and Chief may have more to

          5  add.

          6                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  Yes.

          7  Maintenance is the key.  Also, when you install a

          8  new cameras, and I know from experience, that you

          9  really have to try to make them tampered proof.

         10  Because anything that is new, meets resistance and I

         11  noticed in certain developments when they were first

         12  putting up the cameras, I had to have cops out there

         13  to watch to make sure the job was completed, because

         14  you are putting a gate up and make sure it is bullet

         15  proof, no one is going mess with you, try and take

         16  the camera out.  Once it is in place it becomes a

         17  part of the building, a part of the facade, the

         18  whole thing.

         19                 So once it's in place, I think that

         20  you are not going to have problems that much with

         21  vandalism, because when someone  walks up to

         22  vandalize the camera, there he is.  If the camera he

         23  is looking to take down doesn't catch him, the

         24  camera at the other end would probably catch him.

         25                 Now the other part of your question.
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          2  The PD's part version for monitoring and like we had

          3  in housing, you are right, it is a boring job.  In

          4  the Police Department, and that is about the School

          5  Safety Division, for the cameras that are in

          6  developments we have a cadre of people that are on

          7  limited duty, that are assigned to watch the

          8  cameras.  Boring.  It is something that we have

          9  found that when you recycle the people through there

         10  you try to get the right energetic people to watch

         11  the cameras.

         12                 If we were to do it and it was to be

         13  done throughout the Department of Education of

         14  Facilities, it would be my recommendation that we

         15  have it so you get the best bang out of the buck for

         16  the agent that is monitoring it, if it is going to

         17  be a monitoring system right within the school, it

         18  should be at the front desk.  In addition to that

         19  agent looking to see who is coming in and out, they

         20  are also glancing down at those monitors checking

         21  those entrances and exits.  To have it off in a room

         22  without a comprehensive system in where you are

         23  monitoring the hallways, the roof and all that, that

         24  is going to be a waste to have it like that.  I

         25  would say for this bill, that it is my
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          2  recommendation, covering the entrances and exits, it

          3  should be at a place where you can have someone

          4  monitoring where you get the bang for the buck, he

          5  or she is standing there watching that entrance or

          6  watching the lobby or what have you, but also gazing

          7  down at the monitors.

          8                 MR. TUCKER:  I would just add one

          9  final point to that. And that is, in certain cases

         10  you can minimize the need to have people monitoring

         11  the cameras as least the number of cameras and

         12  locations by use of technology where you actually

         13  have cameras placed in locations that are remote,

         14  but are triggered by sound or movement.  And,

         15  sometimes that is another way to think about this as

         16  well.  So as we talk about how we would do the

         17  implementation of this project, those are the kind

         18  of considerations that I think would be on the

         19  table.

         20                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  You open a

         21  door to a roof that comes out on a development, an

         22  alarm goes off, that particular camera now is always

         23  on, it is triggered and it comes right to the

         24  monitor to let you know it is watching that

         25  particular area.  So, I agree with Ben.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am familiar

          3  with one of those schools that has it.  I mean the

          4  thing is that is, lots of things gets triggered and

          5  that becomes a problem also from my experience.

          6  And, then I just want to say what you already know

          7  which is there is a lot of new technology even that

          8  has taken place the last few years that could in

          9  fact perhaps supplant some of this and do it

         10  differently and you wouldn't have the maintenance

         11  issues or even the monitoring in the same way.  It

         12  is something to think about.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you

         15  Council Member. Chief Nelson, you mentioned truancy.

         16    Would cameras at the entrances and exists help you

         17  in combating that problem?

         18                 ASSISTANT CHIEF NELSON:  I would say

         19  probably so, because now we are seeing who is

         20  running in late, who is sneeking in, students are

         21  very resourceful.  Even though we have one main

         22  entrance, even if it is a scanning sight but if I am

         23  running late I am going to call my friend Vallone,

         24  hey, I'm running late meet me at the back door.  Now

         25  there is a camera there.  I am going to see Vallone
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          2  and I am going to see Nelson.  Vallone opens the

          3  door for Nelson, and of course it is going to combat

          4  truancy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I am going to

          6  make sure that does not happen.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  If we could

          8  channel that resourcefulness into the academic

          9  learning then we would be all set.

         10                 MR. TUCKER:  Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  For planning

         12  purposes since there does not appear to be any more

         13  questions, we are going to take a short break, come

         14  back with a panel of unions on this issue, including

         15  Randi Weingarten.  The break will be approximately

         16  ten minutes.  We thank you.

         17                 MR. TUCKER:  I am sorry.  Can I just

         18  add one point?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  One second,

         20  people please stay seated.

         21                 MR. TUCKER:  Just a point of

         22  clarification because I was just reminded that our

         23  Division of School Facilities does and has had for

         24  the past five years, and now has improved their

         25  Maintenance programs.  I do not want to give the
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          2  impression that there is no maintenance taking

          3  place.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

          5  thank you both for your testimony today.  It will be

          6  very helpful and we look forward to working with you

          7  both in the future.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

          9                 (A short break was taken).

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I would like

         11  to welcome Randi Weingarten, the President of the

         12  United Federation of Teachers.  Thank you for

         13  joining us.

         14                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  My pleasure, and I

         15  am just trying to clean up the water glasses here,

         16  so it is nice and neat. Neatness counts sometimes.

         17                 I am delighted to be here, as you

         18  know, I tried to be present whenever possible, each

         19  time the City Council holds a hearing -- can you

         20  hear?  Each time the City Council holds a hearing,

         21  on anything involving education, if I am available I

         22  try to testify myself, because I think that is the

         23  respect that is due to the City Council.  So, I

         24  always thank you for inviting us and I do try to

         25  testify myself.
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          2                 To my right, I have Jim Bowmann

          3  (phonetic), who is the head of our School Security

          4  Office and who has been doing school security work

          5  for most of his working lifetime.  And, I say things

          6  that way about working lifetime, because often in

          7  this new reorganization, the people who have

          8  dedicated their lives to teaching and educating and

          9  nurturing our young people are sometimes looked at

         10  scornfully as members of the "status quo group", and

         11  I just want to tell you that regardless of how I may

         12  be looked upon, I and much of my staff will continue

         13  to dedicate our working lives to the young people of

         14  the City of New York.

         15                 In recent years, thanks to the new

         16  investments and the hard work by our police, and I

         17  believe that the NYPD has made great strides in

         18  reducing crime on the streets, we've seen a sense in

         19  New York of a real reduction of crime on the

         20  streets.

         21                 We do not believe that we see the

         22  same level of consistent and focused attention

         23  directed on safety and school security in the

         24  schools, and I believe that is one of the reasons

         25  why Council Member Vallone has said, "Let's do
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          2  something like video cameras in each school".

          3  Because, Council Member Vallone, just like many of

          4  the rest of us, have this instinct that much more

          5  has to be done in the schools to ensure the social

          6  contract with our kids and with staff members that

          7  are there that when you walk into a school, it is a

          8  safe haven.  And, we cannot step backwards from that

          9  social contract.  So where as we applaud Council

         10  Member Vallone for this bill and for thinking about

         11  how video cameras will be very helpful preventively

         12  and proactively.

         13                 The question we have is this.  In a

         14  period of time of scarce resources, can the City

         15  really afford to do video cameras in every single

         16  school?  And in this period of time when we are

         17  constantly pressed by the Mayor and others with this

         18  question about where do the resources go, what we

         19  would suggest is a triage approach and you see that

         20  in my testimony.

         21                 That in the schools that need it, we

         22  should have video cameras, but at the same time, two

         23  other issues are things that have to be addressed

         24  ASAP.  And when I talk about those two issues, the

         25  first issue I want to talk about is the funding to
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          2  ensure that School Safety Agent staffing is

          3  maintained at sufficient coverage levels.

          4                 Consider this, schools opened in

          5  September 2001 with a School Safety Agent roster of

          6  about 4,200 School Safety Agents. Over the course of

          7  the last school year attrition averaged

          8  approximately 30 agents per month.  Two classes of

          9  School Safety Agents were added during the school

         10  year but were not sufficient to cover the attrition,

         11  and remember, I do not represent the School Safety

         12  Agents, I am just observing what we see.

         13                 Additionally, we assume a ten percent

         14  per diem absent rate and take into account long term

         15  absences, disciplinary removals and those agents

         16  assigned to special details.  When you take all of

         17  these things into account our estimate, the UFTs

         18  estimate, is that there are only 3,300 agents

         19  available on a daily bases for daily assignment.

         20                 And, so what is happening right now

         21  is like we are running water in a bucket with a hole

         22  in the bottom that's larger than the mouth of the

         23  faucet.  No matter how much water goes into this

         24  bucket, we never are able to have the water reach

         25  the top because there is always this constant
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          2  outflow in terms of attrition, assignment,

          3  discipline and whatnot.

          4                 So, what is happening is that schools

          5  across the City are telling us we don't have enough

          6  Safety Agents right now. Ultimately, this is a

          7  concern not only for my members but for students,

          8  parents, and school administrators as well.

          9                 Now, the system claims to be near the

         10  4,200 roster number, but again that is not what our

         11  members see.  The opening of new schools and new

         12  programs this year has meant the transfer of School

         13  Safety Agents from some schools and assignments to

         14  new locations.  Remember they said they opened 54 or

         15  55 new schools. Our school based Chapter Leaders are

         16  telling us that many elementary schools with a 1,000

         17  plus students have lost one of their two assigned

         18  agents and we are also hearing that "low incident

         19  schools" have had agents reassigned to other

         20  schools.  One of the parent coordinators in the

         21  school system who is here with us today just told me

         22  that her school does not have one Safety Agent.

         23  Queens for example.  A Queens High School that had

         24  nine School Security Agents last June, had five on

         25  the opening day.              Second.  The second
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          2  area where the system needs to perform better, is in

          3  consistent application of the Student Code of

          4  Conduct and Student Suspensions.

          5                 We have always believed and supported

          6  the implementation and the enforcement of a fair and

          7  reasonable Student Code of Conduct that is

          8  consistently, uniformly and equitably implemented

          9  across the school system.  And, we recently

         10  testified in support of the DOE's proposed changes

         11  to the Students Code of Conduct but raised some

         12  questions concerning its implementation.

         13  And this is what I mean, if you permit me two more

         14  minutes.

         15                 A recent analysis that we have made

         16  of the TWEED (phonetic) Suspension Data for the last

         17  three and a half school years, shows that there has

         18  been a significant decline in the over all number of

         19  student suspensions.  Now, at first flush, that

         20  would say "Oh great", that means school crime is

         21  down and people and kids feel safer in schools.  But

         22  that is now what the evidence shows. Let us just

         23  look at the school suspension evidence.

         24                 In 2000 to 2001, the system had

         25  46,585 students suspensions.  Then the next year
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          2  which was the year that 9- 11 took place, the school

          3  system had suspensions, the number of suspensions

          4  dropped to about 28,000 and change.  And, even we

          5  believe that September 11 did change the tone of

          6  schools for the better that year.

          7                 However, during the 2002- 2003 school

          8  year, even the New York Post got the school system

          9  to admit that suspensions had increased to 31,564.

         10  But, that was still over 15,000 fewer than just two

         11  years before hand.  At the same time when you look

         12  at all the anecdotal reports that we get from

         13  schools, last year verses the reports we got from

         14  two years ago and three years ago, with the

         15  exception of the 9- 11 school year, the reports are

         16  not much different.  People don't feel much

         17  different about what's going on in schools and the

         18  safety or the lack of safety particularly in some

         19  places.

         20                 That means that we believe that the

         21  Code of Student Conduct has not been adequately

         22  enforced.  In addition, as students returned to

         23  school this year we have begun to receive complaints

         24  from our members in various school regions around

         25  the City that there was no mechanism to place, or no

                                                            91

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  mechanism in place, to suspend misbehaving students

          3  at the Superintendent's level nor were there enough

          4  alternative instructional sites for those students.And

          5  the best article that I have seen written on this is

          6  one that I have attached to my testimony from Mark

          7  Epstein dated September 10, 2003.  Mr. Epstein,

          8  actually Dr. Epstein is a Dean at Jamaica High

          9  School and is someone who has his Doctorate in

         10  Japanese History and Diplomacy and has made his

         11  career working with kids.  And, he more than maybe

         12  anyone else, other than Jim Bowmann (phonetic) and

         13  Ben Tucker, understand how to create safe school

         14  environments.

         15                 What he has said is this.  And, this

         16  is why I want you to focus on it for just one more

         17  minute.  If you think about it in this way, think

         18  about the ramifications if the same lack of

         19  infrastructure occurred in the Justice System City-

         20  wide.

         21                 What would happen in our City if we

         22  had cops on the beat who made arrests, but there was

         23  no process afterwards.  No place for serious

         24  offenders, no courts to adjudicate right from wrong,

         25  and no places that were appropriate after an
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          2  infraction has been adjudicated.  Think about what

          3  would happen in this City. There would be this huge

          4  public out cry.  No one would put up with this for

          5  more than a nanosecond.  But what is happening in

          6  schools is this, the last of the suspension system

          7  right now in schools, the lack of an infrastructure,

          8  to figure out, should this kid get suspended, should

          9  this kid stay in school?  You know what is going to

         10  happen.  Is there an alternative setting for this

         11  kid?  The lack of that infrastructure is like the

         12  lack of having a criminal justice system in the City

         13  of New York.

         14            And what is happening is our Principals,

         15  our Teachers, our Deans, are doing the best they can

         16  under the situation but this is a real hidden

         17  problem because they are trying to deal with it on a

         18  case by case basis.  Nevertheless, this is probably

         19  the most serious oversight concerning safety in the

         20  new reorganization.

         21                 Finally, let me say this that we will

         22  be pleased to share with you our Annual Report on

         23  School Safety for 2002- 2003. It is currently being

         24  edited for release.  It is showing some interesting

         25  data, but we are doing our due diligence right now
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          2  to make sure that our data is correct.  What is hard

          3  about it this year is that for the first time in 25

          4  years we cannot and do not have incident reports

          5  from the City of New York or the Board of Education

          6  or TWEED.  We have historically relied on two sets

          7  of information to try to make sure the data jives

          8  with each other.

          9                 First the information from our

         10  Chapter Leaders, our Shop Stewards in every school.

         11  And second, the information provided by the Board of

         12  Education's Division of School Safety. Now just like

         13  what happens when the City Council, the door has

         14  been slammed shut on us in terms of getting any

         15  information from them.

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you

         18  very, very much Randi.  I want to deal with the

         19  information.  I think you know how strongly I feel.

         20                 Is there anyone from the Department

         21  of Education here?  Right.  I appreciate it because

         22  I think it is important to hear the witnesses and I

         23  would like you to bring back to the Chancellor, I

         24  want to understand, and this is utterly unacceptable

         25  to not provide not only the President of the UFT
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          2  with this information, but anyone.  If the parent

          3  wants to know the information, if a reporter wants

          4  to know the information, if the Chair of the

          5  Education Committee or a member of the New York City

          6  Council or State legislature.  If anyone wants to

          7  know the information regarding incidents at our

          8  schools, that is public information, this is, the

          9  last I looked, a public institution and we have to

         10  have access to the information.

         11                 It has to be looked at not as, it is

         12  helpful, it is helpful to have your voice on this

         13  issue to understand from your perspective, from a

         14  variety of perspectives, what is going on in our

         15  school system.

         16                 So, I appreciate very much, Randi,

         17  you bringing this to my attention because you know,

         18  I tend to track all of the lack of information, but

         19  I did not know about this particular one.  It is

         20  really a trend.  This is not the CIA, this is the

         21  Department of Education and we have to have a

         22  transparent Agency.  That is what the Mayor

         23  promised, that is what our Chancellor promised and I

         24  as Chair of the Education Committee plan to hold

         25  both the Mayor and the Chancellor's speech to the
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          2  fire on this kind of issue.

          3                 Let me just get to the substance of

          4  points that you have made.  I just want to ask you a

          5  question that I asked Ben Tucker, which bears on the

          6  issue of security cameras.

          7                 The State, from No Child Left Behind,

          8  came out with this list of schools that were

          9   "persistently dangerous".  There were two schools

         10  in New York City on that list and apparently 13 on

         11  the Watch List.  What algorithm they used to come up

         12  with that, seemingly God only knows.  But, my

         13  question that I ask Mr. Tucker is, you know, --

         14                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Maybe a calculus

         15  teacher could figure it out.  I certainly could not.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.  Given

         17  that terminology and I understand that different

         18  people would define it different ways.  How many of

         19  our schools are persistently dangerous?

         20  I do not mean by the State Education Departments,

         21  but as a parent or as a citizen of New York, how

         22  many of our 1,200 should we be worried about?  And

         23  Mr. Tucker could not give me an exact number, but he

         24  said that many of schools have issues.  And, I said

         25   "How many of them have issues"?  I was wondering
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          2  giving your perspective, how many of them are you

          3  concerned about that have had repeated incidence

          4  that we as members of this legislative body and

          5  members of the public should be concerned about?

          6  Are we talking ten, are we talking 500, are we

          7  talking 900, just a ball park --

          8                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Let me try to deal

          9  with it in three different ways.  The first way is

         10  probably the most direct way. When you will see our

         11  report one of the statistics that we try to do each

         12  year, is to talk about where the incidents are

         13  coming from. So, rather than arrive at a conclusion

         14  at what constitutes a dangerous school, we get the

         15  facts out there so that people can arrive at their

         16  own conclusions.  And what has historically happened

         17  is that you see a clustering of the most incidents

         18  in a few schools.

         19                 So, for example in the last few years

         20  you see that ten percent of the schools are

         21  responsible for 50 to 60 percent of the incidents.

         22  And, then when you look at that you can than look at

         23  those schools and see where, if you had a triage

         24  approach, what needs to be done in those places.

         25  And again, we will share that list with -- as soon
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          2  as we have the report finalized for this year, we

          3  will share it with you and we will share with the

          4  City Council. What we don't do in public is we do

          5  not share with the public the names of all those

          6  schools, obviously, but we are perfectly able -- are

          7  we -- to share this?  We can share this, as Jim

          8  collects this information.  We will share the names

          9  of those schools with the City Council.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  So, just so I

         11  understand, approximately, it sounds like you are

         12  saying that approximately 120 schools by some

         13  standards, kind of repeatedly have an unacceptable

         14  level of incidence.

         15                 MS. WEINGARTEN: Well this is like,

         16  let me put it this way.  Which is no one -- if you

         17  are a parent in a school that has had even one

         18  incident, one incident is too much.  So, but when

         19  you start seeing the data, then you start realizing

         20  the kind of remedial action that has to be taken for

         21  schools that have been persistently -- have had

         22  persistent incidents.

         23                 So for example, Council Member

         24  Vallone's instinct about video cameras in schools

         25  where you see persistent intruders that is a tailor
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          2  made place for video cameras.  In schools where you

          3  see recidivism with weapons, that is a school where

          4  you probably need the scanning equipment.  So, but,

          5  you know what happens is that the way in which New

          6  York did its data, I find terribly faulty.  Because

          7  here you have, in New York, when it comes to

          8  academic issues, New York is more religious than any

          9  other State about getting -- I think New York is the

         10  only State that is actually fully complying with No

         11  Child Left Behind.  Just suppose New York to Alabama

         12  or to another State that has or to another State

         13  where you would think there would be schools that

         14  were on the Under Performing List, that have no

         15  schools on the Under Performing List and yet New

         16  York City has over, you know, a third of them.  So

         17  the way in which the algorithm was done in safety,

         18  was certainly very different than the way it was

         19  done in terms of academics and the fact that there

         20  was so few schools on it said to me that the formula

         21  meant nothing.  And, in fact one of the schools that

         22  was on it, is a District 75 school, where the kids

         23  that are there, are in the behavioral algorithm that

         24  is so seriously that there are so many serious

         25  behavior problems you would expect to see behavior
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          2  problems repeatedly.  And thankfully because of how

          3  incredibly wonderful that staff is in that school,

          4  they have helped these kids tremendously.

          5                 So there are a lot of issues here.

          6  It seems to me that the State did us a disservice by

          7  not putting together a much more accurate proxy, and

          8  I also wonder, as I have said, why would they be so

          9  religious about academics but about safety, which is

         10  as important maybe more important of a concern to

         11  parents, they, you know, did it in this way.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  You know,

         13  that is helpful and I made a similar point to Ben

         14  Tucker.  Let me just switch gears.  I know Chair

         15  Vallone has questions and comments and I am sure my

         16  other colleagues do too.

         17                 About a year and a half ago I did a

         18  speech, a teachers speak out in the Chambers and we

         19  had about 75 teachers come.  Other then their

         20  complaints about no paper towels, the single

         21  greatest complaint was about school safety.

         22                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  And they said

         24  that was the single thing that drove them out the

         25  system.  And I was wondering, you had spoken about
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          2  the cost to children that the school safety

          3  incidence and that connection is obvious, but we are

          4  spending a lot of money on recruiting new teachers.

          5  Is there anyway to get at the cost, you know,

          6  because I sometimes find if you put a dollar figure

          7  on something people understand that we have to turn

          8  it around and I do not know if there is anyway to

          9  get that, --

         10                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Actually there

         11  probably is.             CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  --

         12  It seems that it effects retention.

         13                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  Actually there

         14  probably is.  When we opened bargaining this year,

         15  we talked about the new three R's. Because we know

         16  that everything right now is about helping to get

         17  results, about helping to ensure.

         18                 Our goal is to help to ensure that

         19  every child in our watch becomes academically

         20  proficient, so that he or she can do what ever he or

         21  she wants to do after high school, but also develops

         22  a good social character as well.

         23                 And, so what we are looking at and

         24  seeing is that if you -- the name of the game right

         25  now is not teacher recruitment, but teacher
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          2  retention.  Not just in New York but all over the

          3  place,  And so if you want to get results, it is

          4  about teacher retention, respecting teachers for the

          5  issues that they raise, that's a huge issue in

          6  retention, and about the resources to get that done.

          7

          8                 The City school system gave us data.

          9  It is interesting.  They wouldn't let us participate

         10  with them in the Exit Survey of teachers who are

         11  treading out, but they couldn't deny the data that

         12  came out of that survey.  And that survey showed

         13  that after salary the number two concern was

         14  discipline and not being able to  help the 98

         15  percent of the kids in their classrooms that want to

         16  do a great job, and not feeling that if they push on

         17  an issue with a kid that may be disruptive, that

         18  they will be backed up in anyway in the school

         19  system.  And frankly what happened last year in

         20  several incidents, like in Taft High School in the

         21  Bronx, things got fixed, Taft, under the

         22  Chancellor's district last year, is a much more

         23  improved school, but when the issues starting

         24  arising about the school being our of control the

         25  first thing that you heard from school
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          2  administration was this.  If you taught better there

          3  would be no discipline problems.

          4                 And so you are quite right and we

          5  will try to figure out a metric for how much this

          6  cost.  We do know, that one out of four new

          7  teachers, split in the first year.  So all of that

          8  money that was spent in recruitment, in incentives,

          9  and in professional development is gone, and that 35

         10  percent of our teachers leave within the first three

         11  years.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Thank you.

         13  Chairman Vallone.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  In the interest

         15  of time I will not ask any question, I just want to

         16  thank you for your testimony and also for your

         17  concern for School Safety Agents.  As you probably

         18  know, I think Jim Bowmann (phonetic) testified, we

         19  had a hearing, Chair Moskowitz and I recently on

         20  that specific issue, so we share your concerns.  I

         21  thank you for your testimony today. Council Member

         22  Brewer.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:   Thank you

         24  very much.  I thought that your testimony was

         25  excellent.  The part that rang true was the fact
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          2  that there was fewer School Safety Officers.  I

          3  spend most of my day chasing them.  I run around

          4  because it gets switched from one to the other,

          5  definitely two to one in the elementary. One high

          6  school does not have as many problems, decrease --

          7  running over to the junior high school.  I can give

          8  you all the names, I know where they are and I run

          9  after them trying to get them back. Obviously, there

         10  are not enough.  You cannot take a number and

         11  increase it when there is no increase.  With five

         12  high schools in my district, that is what we do, we

         13  run around.  So my question to you is will this

         14  information be in your report, is that part of the

         15  report, that issue of lack of School Safety Officers

         16  and do you think, I must admit I am not as big a fan

         17  of the cameras as I am of School Safety Officers and

         18  of perhaps some new technology that would in fact

         19  allow us to both utilize the personnel and less with

         20  the constant monitoring of cameras.  I am not sure

         21  entrances and exits really work.  So my questions to

         22  you specifically is, will the School Safety Officer

         23  issue be in your report and do you think that

         24  personnel should be increased, I think you do, and

         25  could it in fact, --

                                                            104

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  We believe -- look

          3  again, and sometimes I get in real trouble for

          4  having said this, like last year at this time I said

          5  even though I did not believe it was the best thing

          6  to do, that if the Mayor was really right about a

          7  fiscal problem, that instead of firing new teachers

          8  and instead of firing paraprofessionals which he

          9  did, instead of firing school aids, which he did,

         10  that we could do a retirement incentive, to try to

         11  save money that way.

         12                 So we are trying to advocate based

         13  upon what we see as current and present

         14  circumstances, rather then if we had all the money

         15  in the world.  If we had all the money in the world

         16  it would be easy to advocate, but in this instance

         17  the person -- we agree with you Gail -- the person

         18  in a school who is trained and can respond, can go

         19  well farther than a video camera, but at the same

         20  time we respect the fact that anybody who is out

         21  saying we need to address and do more things in

         22  terms as school security, we are going to embrace

         23  with open arms.

         24                 So we think if you had to make a

         25  choice as between one or the other, we would make a
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          2  choice for a person particularly in elementary

          3  school because when you have none, or in this, we

          4  have fought so hard in the 80's and 90's to have one

          5  and then to have two, and so we are seeing this.

          6  Again the City schools system says to me, because I

          7  raised this issue on the first day or school, and

          8  the routine answer I get back is, that I am not

          9  right.  Now, you know that could be true, but it is

         10  hard to imagine that I am not right about anything

         11  and that the people in the schools who are saying

         12  this to us, are not right as well.  So we will

         13  address this to the extent that we can in the report

         14  and what we try to do in this issue is what Council

         15  Member Moskowitz suggested in the other issue, we

         16  try to say given all of the absences and the people

         17  that are pulled out for dismal hearings and the

         18  people that are moved around in the regular

         19  attrition, we see that the effective force is now

         20  3,300 not 4,200.  That we could be wrong, it could

         21  be 3,500 it could be 3,600, but it is clearly below

         22  the 4,200 and we don't think the 4,200 was enough.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:   I agree,

         24  thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  If choice were
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          2  not an issue and funding were found, you would not

          3  have any objections to video cameras in schools,

          4  would you?

          5                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  If choice, in

          6  schools that are these big units where you have like

          7  27 doors all over the place and where you can't

          8  possibly get enough personnel, those are the

          9  schools.  Like John F. Kennedy High School, that

         10  infrastructure, that is a school that you really,

         11  really need to have cameras because you can not get

         12  to the different nooks and crannies.  In schools

         13  like the old Wingate High School, it is not so old

         14  but it is a circular school, and a person can't look

         15  down the halls, that is a place where cameras can

         16  help, in the way of just extending human beings eyes

         17  to places that they can not get to.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE :  Okay.  Thank

         19  you.  Again, thank you for coming down today, it is

         20  always appreciated and it is always good seeing you,

         21  you too also, Jim.  Now I would like to call Greg

         22  Floyd from the School Safety Officers Union, DC 37,

         23  Local 237.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  I am just

         25  going to apologize in advance, I have to go to a
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          2  school event and I hope to have your written

          3  testimony and I will read it.  So I just wanted to

          4  apologize to you personally.

          5                 MR. FLOYD:  Say hello to the agents

          6  for us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ:  Will do so.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 MR. FLOYD:  Good morning or good

         10  afternoon.  My name is Gregory Floyd and I am the

         11  Director of the Citywide Division, Teamsters Local

         12  237.  We are the union that represents the over

         13  4,000 School Safety Agents in the New York City

         14  Public School System.

         15                 I am testifying today on behalf of

         16  Mr. Carl Haynes, President and in support of Intro

         17  490 which requires video cameras to be installed at

         18  all entrances and exit doors at each of the public

         19  schools.

         20                 Teamsters Local 237 has for a long

         21  time maintained that the New York City Public

         22  Schools Safety Division and the Department of

         23  Education cannot win the war against crime without

         24  first securing all exits and entrances in the

         25  schools.
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          2                 Today, with the influx of new agents

          3  in the system, unguarded doors remain a serious

          4  problem.  Bear in mind that there is an average of

          5  eight to ten exit doors and in the larger school, up

          6  to 20 exit doors and entrances.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Is it eight to

          8  ten or eight to twelve.

          9                 MR. FLOYD:  Eight to twelve.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Only because

         11  that is very important to us.  I want to get the

         12  exact count.

         13                 MR. FLOYD:  Sorry, eight to twelve.

         14                 Currently all of our resources are

         15  geared toward the main entrances where School Safety

         16  Agents shepherd students through scanners and metal

         17  detectors at the start of the school day. Although

         18  students try to smuggle weapons into school through

         19  the front door, some students bypass the metal

         20  detectors by passing their weapons to friends or

         21  having the friend pass the weapon through unguarded

         22  side doors and back doors.    Students are known to

         23  leave these doors open for their friends and other

         24  outsiders.

         25                 While School Safety Agents routinely
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          2  patrol the inside of schools and its perimeters,

          3  they do not guard all doors. We agree it would make

          4  sense to permanently station a School Safety Agent

          5  at every door in every school.  As I have said

          6  earlier, some of the larger schools may have as many

          7  as 20 doors.

          8                 Local 237 has publicly called on the

          9  City and the Department of Education to find means

         10  to upgrade antiquated scanning equipment and install

         11  surveillance cameras and magnetic doors at every

         12  entrance and exit doors in the City schools,

         13  particularly in the most troublesome schools.

         14  Ideally security cameras should be installed in all

         15  schools as required by Intro. 490.

         16                 In addition, the City and the

         17  Department of Education should seriously consider

         18  installing cameras and monitors on stairwells in

         19  troubled schools.  These stairwells are often poorly

         20  lit and are not centrally located.

         21                 School Safety Agents frequently

         22  apprehend students engaging in sexual activity in

         23  the stairwell.  Some rapes have occurred in

         24  stairwells.  This may not happen if surveillance

         25  cameras were installed in these dark recesses --

                                                            110

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  accesses.

          3                 Our School Safety Agents are doing a

          4  good job of managing crime in our public schools.

          5  The Mayor's latest Management Report stated that

          6  crime has gone done by seven percent in the schools.

          7    This is not because there is no longer criminal

          8  behavior in the schools, but rather because School

          9  Safety Agents have been more vigilant in preventing

         10  crimes from getting into the schools.  As a result,

         11  much of the violence now occurs outside of the

         12  school property.

         13                 School Safety Agents do what they can

         14  with the equipment they are given to work with

         15  crime, to keep crime under control in our schools,

         16  but cannot be everywhere at the same time.

         17  Surveillance cameras strategically positioned and

         18  monitored centrally within the schools would enhance

         19  their ability to see what is going on.

         20                 The City already uses surveillance

         21  cameras in several public hospitals to improve

         22  security and the Feds are using and considering or

         23  considering new technology in airports for scanning

         24  and detection.  Let's use some of the technology to

         25  better protect our children and staff in our public
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          2  schools.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Floyd.  Your testimony will be very useful to us in

          6  crafting this bill, and we appreciate having your

          7  support and you taking the time to come down here

          8  today.  One quick question.

          9                 Apparently, as you know, there is a

         10  Pilot Program already in existence in ten schools.

         11  I would like to know your thoughts on that program

         12  and how your officers feel about it.

         13                 MR. FLOYD:  Well, the officers, the

         14  agents in general, sometimes we have the programs

         15  because of the inconsistency of the way they are

         16  deployed.  They are routinely changed and sometimes

         17  you don't get the consistency of the feel of the

         18  officers because they are there today and tomorrow,

         19  because of whatever administrative reasons they are

         20  pulled out and so you get a whole new group of

         21  School Safety Agents in and they don't really get a

         22  feel for the program because they are routinely

         23  transferred around.  And it's just not enough for

         24  them to go around and just to get a feel of how they

         25  feel because they transfer from maybe from month to
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          2  month or a --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And, Gail

          4  chases them.

          5                 MR. FLOYD:  -- Minute to minute.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Obviously we

          7  had a whole hearing on that, and we look forward to

          8  working with you on that, but, I do not want to, and

          9  if it's a serious issue, I do not want to not know

         10  about it.

         11                 MR. FLOYD:  No, this is a

         12  continuation from our February hearing and I am sure

         13  there will be more hearings on School Safety.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Absolutely.

         15  So, unfortunately there is no feedback right now

         16  regarding how these programs are working?

         17                 MR. FLOYD:  No.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Okay.  I would

         19  like to introduce Council Member Lanza who has been

         20  sitting patiently for awhile.  I have been

         21  forgetting about him.

         22                 Since there are no questions.  Thank

         23  you for coming down today and we will look forward

         24  to working with you on this.

         25                 MR. FLOYD:  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Now, I would

          3  like to call a company that actually installs these

          4  type cameras and has a presentation for us on how

          5  they work.  I believe it is Steve Surfaro and

          6  whatever group you brought with you to do this

          7  demonstration.  Please come up.

          8                 MR. SURCEASE (PHONETIC):  Good

          9  afternoon.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  If you could,

         11  before you get started, please introduce yourselves

         12  and who you represent.

         13                 MR. SARACUSA:  I am representing

         14  Security Systems Integration Company whose primary

         15  function in core businesses is do design, build and

         16  install security systems.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And who is with

         18  you today.

         19                 MR. SARACUSA:  I have Mr. Len

         20  Maleonski, who is the VP of Sales at the Security

         21  Installation Integration Company.  To my right,

         22  third right is Ron Possner (phonetic), also with

         23  Antar Com (phonetic) and then we have Steve Surfaro

         24  from Panasonic, and Steve I will let you introduce

         25  the others.
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          2                 MR. SURFARO:  Sure.  I actually

          3  manage part of the engineering and major products

          4  areas for Panasonic and I am also a member of the

          5  ASIS or American Society for Industrial Security,

          6  Physical Security Council.

          7                 This is actually a very active area

          8  in the security industry and if anybody is

          9  interested in learning more about how to deploy

         10  security systems, the American Society for

         11  Industrial Security offers a real comprehensive

         12  education program.  So we actually hold workshops,

         13  usually every couple of months in different areas.

         14  The next one is in November in Washington, DC.

         15  Sorry, I just wanted to offer that.  A little plug,

         16  but you know it is an opportunity for educators,

         17  physical security professionals, and your agents to

         18  gain better exposure into how to work with this

         19  technology and I definitely recommend that you look

         20  into either joining that organizations local

         21  chapters or taking advantage of that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  We have the

         23  Chair of our Technology Committee sitting right here

         24  listening to you, so.

         25                 MR. SURFARO:  Great.  Okay.  Well, I
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          2  wanted to just provide some general observations

          3  about camera technologies. Really, what we have here

          4  is a -- this isn't intended just a product demo, but

          5  it's intended just to expose you to different

          6  technologies and hopefully answer some questions

          7  about what the state of the art is in terms of

          8  network cameras, digital video recorders and things

          9  that are tools for your agents and your public

         10  officials to be able to use to access the security

         11  and to promote safety in our schools.

         12                 So, one thing that I heard a great

         13  deal is, probably the number one thing, is that

         14  these security systems are expensive to monitor and

         15  expensive to purchase.  And I just want to provide a

         16  couple of general comments on those.

         17                 Really everyone of these products

         18  that you see in front of you are actually what is

         19  known as network appliances these days.  You know we

         20  all exist now and are so connected to networks- I

         21  noticed a number of you have, you know these little

         22  blackberry devices, you know, well those are

         23  connected to a network here. Your cell phone is

         24  connected to a network.  And actually the cameras

         25  that you see in front of you there, are actually
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          2  connected to their own little network.  So, I will

          3  offer one suggestion and that is one thing that may

          4  not have been considered in assessing the costs in

          5  the program or any pilot program of deployment of

          6  security cameras, is to actually make use of your

          7  schools existing network or sub- network and then

          8  provide for a central monitoring through what is

          9  known as Wham (phonetic) Connectivity.

         10                 I know someone over here actually

         11  brought up wireless technology, the use of wireless

         12  technology and it is interesting but, I just

         13  happened to turn to one of my counterparts and I

         14  said," Hey Chris did you bring your access point",

         15  and he said "sure".  Well, I am actually connected

         16  right now to the video images that you see with this

         17  little notebook computer that contains what is known

         18  as Y- Fi (phonetic).  Now in the deployment of

         19  technologies like that, that is extremely important.

         20    Don't worry I am not recording anybody here.

         21                 Things of this nature involve the

         22  correct surveys and the correct training in the use

         23  of such technologies.  And that is where you know

         24  contractors come because they are able to make use

         25  of deficiencies in designs by standardizing on
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          2  certain products, but then performing site surveys

          3  of the school system to find out what the easiest

          4  way to tap in your cameras into the network, the

          5  safest by not overloading your network, but also how

          6  you can make use of wireless devices as well.  So

          7  those technologies are available to you.

          8                 The other thing that I just want to

          9  comment on is expensive to monitor.  A lot of these

         10  systems these days, can be automated, so you don't

         11  necessarily have to watch everything every day of

         12  the week every hour of the day.  So for example,

         13  there are a number of schools in the New Jersey area

         14  that are actually using video cameras to verify fire

         15  alarms.  So they react to fire alarm conditions and

         16  they can actually send out what is know as Alarm

         17  Email.  You can get the email right on your cell

         18  phone for example. So your existing agents can

         19  actually receive alarm information like that.  Also,

         20  if your doors are propped opened.

         21                 Positive Identity Management, as we

         22  see it, is becoming up and coming and popular in

         23  various school districts throughout the United

         24  States.  And there are some state funded programs to

         25  promote Positive Identity Management because the
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          2  parents or the schools do not want just anyone

          3  picking up their children after hours.  So an IRIS

          4  authentication device, which is over in the far

          5  right hand corner, is actually an example that

          6  positive Identity Management technology, and it

          7  actually already contains a camera, so it does

          8  double duty.  So you actually get the benefit of

          9  finding out of who is coming in to the facility but

         10  also finding out positively that person is there and

         11  their enrolled in the system.

         12                 So I strongly feel that we can, in

         13  terms of our current level of technologies, offer

         14  the ability to reduce costs by arriving at a more

         15  accurate, what we call a per- camera cost to allow

         16  for network deployment.  These devices deployed on a

         17  complete network and allowing them to provide a good

         18  quality of service either remotely or locally.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I just want to

         20  let you know the fact that we do not have the room

         21  that much longer. So, I do appreciate everything

         22  that you're saying, but if you could sum it up and

         23  get to the presentation, I would love to hear it

         24  because we have another witness to go after you.

         25                 MR. SURFARO:  Sure.  Absolutely.
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          2  Would you like us to -- if we can do an actual

          3  product demo here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Great.

          5                 MR. SURFARO:  Okay.  Just, Chris you

          6  want to -- Okay, what we have got pictured over on

          7  that table are actually the four major components in

          8  a security system.  You have an actual video monitor

          9  that could also be a computer monitor and underneath

         10  the computer monitor there is what is known as a

         11  digital video recorder.  The digital video recorder

         12  represents kind of like the control center of the

         13  entire system.  It is an appliance, it is a network

         14  appliance, it can sit on your network and allow you

         15  access to previously recorded video, alarm events

         16  that have occurred. Such as if a door has been held

         17  open or propped open.  You have a record of who

         18  actually propped the door open.  You can see the

         19  events leading up to that point and the recorder

         20  allows you to play back those events remotely.

         21                 Typically the recorders accommodate

         22  about 16 cameras per box.  That's that box that is

         23  only three and one- half inches high and it is about

         24  16 inches deep.  It provides for high resolution

         25  recording at the school itself and also allows you
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          2  to remotely monitor them at a central location.

          3                 Basically what this means is, you can

          4  have an existing server at the Police Department or

          5  at a central station, and there are a number of

          6  companies actually in New York City, among them the

          7  New York City Transit, that actually use devices

          8  like this and monitor them at a central location.

          9  They have actually built a central video monitoring

         10  location.

         11                 The other alternative to using this

         12  is to use the local command center as a strong high

         13  resolution monitoring location and then send out

         14  alarms to a single remote location.  So if an

         15  incident is in progress, the police can actually

         16  connect, the Police Department can connect to this

         17  device remotely through the schools existing network

         18  and pull up any camera within the facility just with

         19  that one box.

         20                 MR TUCKER:  So if you needed to come

         21  into a school, let us say nothing existed, you need

         22  to start from scratch, ten exits, what would you

         23  need to do?

         24                 MR. SURFARO:  You deploy a digital

         25  recorder, you just put a digital video recorder in
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          2  and you place cameras in at each one of the

          3  entrances or exists to monitor the activity there.

          4  And it depends on whether you want an access control

          5  function to see who is coming or going.  Depends if

          6  you want the cameras indoors or just outside of the

          7  exit itself for perimeter surveillance.

          8                 MR. TUCKER:  And would a system like

          9  that cost?

         10                 MR. SURFARO:  Generally, this is just

         11  a kind of a general estimate, but we would like to

         12  think of cost in terms of per camera channel costs,

         13  so including labor and material and including the

         14  portion of the digital video recorded, generally

         15  around $6,000 per channel.

         16                 MR. TUCKER:  Per channel?

         17                 MR. SURFARO:  Per camera channel, I

         18  am sorry, it is $6,000 for each camera.

         19                 MR. TUCKER:  For each camera?

         20                 MR. SURFARO:  Yes.

         21                 MR. TUCKER:  So with ten exits that

         22  would be $60,000?

         23                 MR. SURFARO:  Yes.  Basically that

         24  includes the camera, the connections to the camera,

         25  and amount of wiring to a centrally located digital
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          2  video recorder, and connection to, a simple

          3  connection to your network, if there is a network.

          4  If there isn't a network there, the system can still

          5  be deployed.

          6                 MR. TUCKER:  So there is actually a

          7  labor component associated with that.

          8                 MS. WEINGARTEN:  A lot of schools do

          9  not have a network.

         10                 MR. SURFARO:  That is okay.  Because

         11  the network is a bonus.  The network allows you to

         12  remotely connect and the network also allows you to

         13  reduce costs of your infrastructure as well.  Keep

         14  in mind that the cameras themselves, you can reduce

         15  camera installation costs by the use of ordinary

         16  telephone wiring instead of the expensive coaxial

         17  cable.

         18                 The camera that you see there, Kaz

         19  could you just hold up that?  There is a camera and

         20  actually that is the camera shell that he is holding

         21  up.  This camera shell and it is mounted on the

         22  camera mount, that is what is known as a vandal

         23  proof network camera.  It actually gives you the

         24  best of both worlds.  It can withstand a very strong

         25  100 pound impact, plus at the same time can sit
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          2  directly on your network.  Plus, offers high

          3  resolution video.

          4                 So these cameras can confidently

          5  placed indoors or outdoors and can survive the

          6  rigors of a typical school system.  So you have got

          7  the digital recorder, the camera, your network

          8  connection, if there is one available, and then

          9  another product that is all the way to the right.

         10  Kaz, if you could just turn that, that is a device

         11  what is known as an IRIS authentication camera.

         12  This is an identity management unit that when

         13  someone comes in, this will positively identify

         14  someone entering in the facility.  It can also be

         15  used in truancy applications as well.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  If you were

         17  buying -- again the cost is the biggest factor here.

         18    If a company that was going to charge $6,000 for a

         19  camera or to get the 1,200 school contract, would

         20  that substantially reduce the cost?

         21                 MR. SURFARO:  Absolutely.  There is a

         22  certain economy of scale when you are dealing with

         23  multiply sites because typically both manufacturers

         24  and contractors can work together very closely on a

         25  blanket purchasing agreement.  And as long as the
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          2  schools are accessible from an installation

          3  standpoint, you can reap some efficiencies there in

          4  deploying the systems.  You can also get to the

          5  schools themselves and design a general template and

          6  then adjust that template to the particular needs of

          7  the school.  So yes, economies of scale would

          8  definitely help.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Is there any

         10  other prepared testimony or demonstration that you

         11  wanted to tell us.

         12                 MR. SURFARO:  Kaz, can you just hold

         13  up the computer itself.  I am just going to show you

         14  two ways of monitoring the system.  This is actually

         15  done via a notebook computer that is connected

         16  wirelessly to the system.  In the same way your

         17  agents could actually utilize pocket PCs or small

         18  PCs or Notebook computers that are wirelessly

         19  enabled.

         20                 The computer that is connected there

         21  can also be connected in a wired fashion to the

         22  network its self and can manage the entire system

         23  itself without having to actually be connected to a

         24  network.

         25                 Just really in concluding, probably
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          2  the three most powerful things to keep in mind on

          3  this technology are the capability of remote

          4  monitoring, which can offer you a cost reduction in

          5  manpower, easier cabling, which will definitely

          6  reduce your labor costs, you know by virtue of

          7  connecting to your existing network infrastructure

          8  or the use of what is known as twisted pare video.

          9  And then, lastly, repeatability, where the ability

         10  of the system to react in an automated manner with a

         11  good system design.      These devices are complex

         12  devices to program.  The contractors are very

         13  skilled in programming them.  But if they are

         14  programmed correctly the system can react on its own

         15  in a repeatable manner.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I thank you

         17  very much.  I know that one of the challenges that

         18  we have in the schools and I am familiar with some

         19  of the technology, is that the schools, you know

         20  some are networked some are not some have partial

         21  wireless, you will find one floor and not the

         22  others.  And then of course you will find that those

         23  that have not taken advantage of the E- rate Money

         24  for the wireless and they are doing something else

         25  with it. So we have a real hodgepodge and I would
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          2  suggest that this may or may not be true elsewhere,

          3  but with so many schools you have different levels.

          4  So I think one of the challenges is trying to figure

          5  out between the personnel and the technology it may

          6  not be that one size fits all.  Because we are not

          7  going to catch up to the networking and the wireless

          8  and the boxes and the whatever at the same time.

          9                 The E- rate Money may not be there

         10  for everybody. You know E- rate depends on the

         11  location of the school et cetera, et cetera in terms

         12  of the match.  So I just throw that out that it is a

         13  very complicated process.  We are not like a small

         14  town, it has one school it is wired or it is not

         15  wired.  So it is just a comment.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Thank you,

         18  Gale.  And let me once again say that it is a

         19  pleasure to have you as part of this hearing  with

         20  bringing your expertise to these questions.

         21                 Council Member Jackson.  It is a

         22  pleasure to have you also.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  I would like to

         25  have more people on my committee like you who
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          2  actually stay to the end of the meeting, so.  It is

          3  the second time you have done that, I appreciate it.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I have said

          5  before sometimes what is last is the best and I am

          6  very serious about that and when you stay around you

          7  get to hear some people that you do not normally do

          8  not hear from.  But, I mean the company you

          9  represent and the display and presentation is very

         10  interesting.

         11                 MR. SURFARO:  Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I do know if

         13  you were around earlier during the testimony of the

         14  first panel --

         15                 MR. SURFARO:  Yes I was.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  -- Where I

         17  asked the question, how much will the entire system

         18  cost and how long would it take to implement putting

         19  it all together so the entire system is up and

         20  running, and you heard the response.  They said that

         21  I will be receiving my pension checks before that

         22  happens and then when I focused in, they said a

         23  minimum, minimum of two years.  And the figure was a

         24  couple of hundred million dollars.

         25                 I ask you the same question, knowing
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          2  as what Gale Brewer said and you have heard the

          3  testimony, some of our schools and a majority of

          4  them are in bad shape and you are talking about you

          5  know six to twelve entrances in the smaller schools

          6  and 20 in the big high schools.  Can you sort of

          7  answer that question as to how long, -- let's assume

          8  that the law went into effect and make the

          9  assumption that the City of New York contracted with

         10  your company or two or three companies to do the

         11  same thing with the same program and everything like

         12  that?

         13                 Time frame as far as how long it

         14  would take to put up the 1,200 schools and the

         15  approximate cost knowing whatever you know at this

         16  point in time.

         17                 MR. MALEONSKI:  Hi, I am Len

         18  Maleonski, I would like to answer that question.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Len what is

         21  your position again with the company?  If you do not

         22  mind.

         23                 MR. MALEONSKI:  I am the VP of sales

         24  and I have about a 22 year security background,

         25  governmental, corporate America, so forth.
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          2                 We have put some mild stones as far

          3  as putting a system like that together on paper here

          4  and just wanted to run through them real quickly for

          5  you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          7  Knowing that they are general and not very --

          8                 MR. MALEONSKI:  They are general.

          9  They are basically in a --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  This is the

         11  Chair of our Contract Committee, but you will not be

         12  held to these figures.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  I am just

         14  trying to get an idea.

         15                 MR. MALEONSKI:  First of all the

         16  assessment would run around two weeks, we would

         17  think per school to go in and do a full blown

         18  assessment and to document the facts as they are on

         19  paper.  We would then go into a design phase, which

         20  we have put down as about four weeks.  That means

         21  that we would do our design, identify locations of

         22  infrastructure that could be reutilized to save the

         23  City money and put everything on paper so we could

         24  move forward with that.

         25                 Procurement would be about eight
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          2  weeks.  Procurement could always be lessened by up

          3  front purchasing of product and so forth and having

          4  that available to the City in a stocked area.      Delivery

          5  we expect about two weeks, installation about four

          6  weeks, and commissioning about two to four weeks.

          7  So about 24 weeks or a total of about six months.

          8                 Now, earlier we heard testimony to

          9  the fact that some systems were taking a year to

         10  install.  I would tell you right now that my group

         11  has deployed million dollar systems in six months.

         12  It is a fast track type of thing, it does happen,

         13  there is associated costs that goes with that, but I

         14  would certainly say that a year is definitely not

         15  the norm to install cameras, you know, I do not how

         16  many cameras were involved, and I think that was

         17  JFK, John F. Kennedy High School, but I would say

         18  that a year would be way out of line, as far as we

         19  are concerned.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  As far as

         21  cost factor?

         22                 MR. MALEONSKI:  Cost factor --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  But we are

         24  talking about, let's assume 1,200 schools and you

         25  know some of them are elementary schools,
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          2  intermediate schools, and some are high schools.

          3                 MR. MALEONSKI:  Based on, you know on

          4  each school having, I think I heard earlier 10 to 12

          5  entrance and exit ways and so forth, I would say

          6  that your cost would probably range between $75,000

          7  to $100,000 per school.  Is that what you guys agree

          8  with that?  Let me make sure my team agrees with

          9  that before I go and say something.  But you know

         10  that is about the average.  We include you know for

         11  about $6,000 to $8,000 would be the camera, the

         12  infrastructure cabling, as well as the DVR, digital

         13  video recording, and so forth.  Complete

         14  documentation, a 12 month warranty, which is no

         15  charge of course to the City of New York, we own it

         16  during that time frame.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And then as

         18  far as a maintenance sort of like relationship.  Let

         19  us assume that, as I said, either you or three

         20  companies, you know, were given that, what would it

         21   -- we would be talking about not only putting it up

         22  but what this, what I hear constantly is, okay they

         23  are there but there is no maintenance and follow up.

         24    You know as far as equipment, as far as training

         25  of staff and all of that --             MR.
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          2  MALEONSKI:  Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- Type of

          4  stuff, so flush me out with that if you do not mind.

          5                 MR MALEONSKI:  No problem.  As far as

          6  the training, which is one of the key things because

          7  it sounds to me like you have the Public Safety

          8  School Officers are transitional.  They may be in

          9  one location one day and another day somewhere else.

         10                 We like to do what we call Train the

         11  Trainer.  So we identify somebody that is going to

         12  be in that school in that area that is going to be

         13  able to give somebody their immediate training when

         14  they come in.

         15                 As far as the warranty period goes,

         16  like I said, any industry now it is pretty typical

         17  for a 12 month warranty upon complete installation

         18  satisfaction of the client, being New York City

         19  School.  So during the 12 month warranty anything

         20  that would go wrong with the system would be owned

         21  by the security contractor that installed.  Now

         22  typically after the warranty period most of the time

         23  they enter into a two through five years service and

         24  maintenance agreements.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Two to five
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          2  years you said?

          3                 MR. MALEONSKI:  Yes, that is the

          4  typical, that is the norm I would say, in the

          5  industry.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

          7                 MR. MALEONSKI:  That cost would be

          8  about seven to ten percent of the gross of the

          9  original sale.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Okay.

         11                 MR. MALEONSKI:  So you would figure

         12  if it was a $100,000 system, $7,000 to $10,000 to

         13  maintain that system during the coarse of the first,

         14  or second year I should say.  I am sorry. And that

         15  should cover your parts and warranty during that

         16  time frame.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  And as far

         18  as the life of the equipment, I mean I know that you

         19  know that when you purchase a computer today it is

         20  already old and I know that as an individual that

         21  has carried within a span of four years and I have

         22  carried four different lap tops and aged out of

         23  them, so how long is the life of the equipment?

         24  Realistically.

         25                 MR. MALEONSKI:  I am going to let
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          2  Steve speak to that because Steve is the

          3  manufacturer.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Steve if you

          5  can speak to it like in about ten seconds because

          6  there is another committee-             MR. SURFARO:

          7    Yes.  The camera life span is extremely long.  The

          8  cameras actually come with a three- year warranty on

          9  their own, the technology is such that typically you

         10  would have those at a comparable technology level

         11  for at least six years.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  So, the

         13  overall equipment a good six years or ten years?

         14                 MR. SURFARO:  The DVR technology is

         15  changing on a yearly basis, but you will experience

         16  very, very good efficiencies for at least three

         17  years on that level and six years on the camera

         18  level.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Let us go to

         20  the worst case scenario, I am sorry Peter this is an

         21  important subject.  I am so sorry.

         22                 MR. SURFARO: Let me go to the worse

         23  case scenario, and you were here earlier.  Assuming

         24  that this law is not past, you have heard Jim Oddo

         25  talk about him putting money into Staten Island
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          2  Schools and other people talked about that --

          3                 MR. SURFARO:  Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: -- And let us

          5  assume I wanted to spend some money as a Council

          6  Member in my district.  And let's assume that I said

          7  okay, four schools and each school is a total of let

          8  us say 12 or 16 points.  You can do that contract at

          9  approximate cost of $6,000 per camera, is that

         10  correct?

         11                 MR. SURFARO:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  That is all

         13  the questions that I have for now, and I thank you

         14  for coming and giving the presentation that, I know

         15  you have the Department of Education representative

         16  here and so to be continued, let me just say that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  And I

         18  appreciate the fact that Council Member Jackson is

         19  cutting down his questions, but obviously you will

         20  speak to him whenever he has, if he would like to

         21  follow up with questions.  As I have many more

         22  questions to ask you now regarding follow ups on his

         23  excellent questions, but I cannot do it now, so we

         24  will be in contact in short.  I am sure Council

         25  Member Jackson will also.

                                                            136

          1  EDUCATION AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 Unfortunately I have to cut you.  Is

          3  Renee Reilly still here?  Renee Reilly?  Then we

          4  will be out now.  Okay.  Well, yes.

          5                 MR. SURFARO:  I would like to thank

          6  you very much Peter Vallone, Chairman Vallone, and

          7  also the City Council Members for inviting us down

          8  here to testifying on behalf of the Intro. 490, of

          9  course as you can see we are in favor and in support

         10  of it and whatever we can do in of assistance we are

         11  at your disposal.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE:  Good point,

         13  thanks for throwing that in.  Thank you all

         14  gentlemen.  Thank you Council Member Jackson,

         15  Council Member Comrie, Council Member Gioia, and

         16  this meeting is over.

         17                 (Hearing adjourned at 1:07 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, ANN EMMERICH, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 24th day of September 2003.
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          9            I, ANN EMMERICH, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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